Provide a timeline of when the unit will be delivered, installed, etc.

Provide year 2027 utilization numbers.

Do you plan to see utilization increase or decrease?

The quote on the intuitive data states 3/31/24. Is this still valid?

On divider three, only question 3 needs to be completed. Please refer to our regulations

for the minimum utilization standard.

e The application does not appear to provide documentation for divider four, question 1. 19
CSR 60-50.470 (2) Document that sufficient financing will be available to assure
completion of the project by providing a letter from a financial institution saying it is
willing to finance the project, or an auditor’s statement that unrestricted funds are
available for the project.

e Years 2021 and 2028 were not included in the Revenues and Expenses form. Provide
utilization projections and revenues for these years.

e Were cents included on the revenues and expenses page?

e The utilization projections provided in Divider Il, #12 show 321, 365, and 457 for years
2021-2023; however, on the Revenues and Expenses form utilization for the previous
three years is: 2021 not provided, 363, and 4567 These should match.

e The utilization projections provided in Divider Il, #12 show 837, 920, and not provided for
years 2025-2027; however, on the Revenues and Expenses form utilization for the future
three years is: 1,506, 1,626, and 1,693? These should match.

This information is needed by Thursday, May 23, 2024.

Ma@kfxﬂ/g«%/ FI:C](/ (Name change from Lux to Fick)

Assistant Program Coordinator, Certificate of Need

Department of Health and Senior Services

920 Wildwood Drive, P.O. Box 570

Jefferson City, MO 65102

OFFICE: 573-751-6403

FAX: 573-751-7894

EMAIL: mackinzey.fick@health.mo.gov
http://health.mo.gov/information/boards/certificateofneed/index.php

This electronic mail and any attached documents are intended solely for the named
addressee(s) and contain confidential information. If you are not an addressee, or responsible
for delivering this email to an addressee, you have received this email in error and are notified
that reading, copying, or disclosing this email is prohibited. If you received this email in error,
immediately reply to the sender and delete the message completely from your computer
system.
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From: Zorn, Bonnie on behalf of Herr, Michael

To: Fick, Mackinzey

Cc: Herr, Michael; Zorn, Bonnie; Newby, Christopher
Subject: RE: CON 6100 HS

Date: Thursday, May 23, 2024 3:23:11 PM
Attachments: CON App MHJoplin Proj 6100-HS updtd.pdf
Importance: High

Hello MacKinzey,

Updated CON Application with the information as requested below and per our phone conversation
has been added to our CON application. Please know if anything else is needed.

Michael Herr, COO

Mercy Hospital Joplin

100 Mercy Way Suite 230 | Joplin, MO 64804

Office: 417-556-2444 | Mobile: 417-437-5473 | Fax: 417-556-2807
Email: 702-612-9581michael.herr@mercy.net

MercyT

Find us at:
Facebook | LinkedIn | Instagram | mercy.net | Mercy Careers

This electronic mail and any attached documents are intended solely for the named addressee(s) and contain
confidential information. If you are not an addressee, or responsible for delivering this email to an addressee,
you have received this email in error and are notified that reading, copying, or disclosing this email is
prohibited. If you received this email in error, immediately reply to the sender and delete the message
completely from your computer system.

From: Fick, Mackinzey <Mackinzey.Fick@health.mo.gov>
Sent: Monday, May 13, 2024 4:36 PM

To: Herr, Michael <Michael.Herr@Mercy.Net>

Subject: CON 6100

External Email: Please be careful when opening attachments or clicking on links. - Mercy
Technology Services

Michael,

After reviewing your application, some additional information is needed.

e On divider two, questions 11 & 12 must be completed, and copies of these documents
must be provided. 19 CSR 60-50.430 (6) Document that providers of similar health
services in the proposed service area have been notified of the application by a public
notice in the local newspaper of general circulation before it was filed with the CON
Program by the applicant.

e Provide a registered representative form for Michael Herr.


mailto:Bonnie.Zorn@Mercy.net
mailto:Michael.Herr@Mercy.Net
mailto:Mackinzey.Fick@health.mo.gov
mailto:Michael.Herr@Mercy.Net
mailto:Bonnie.Zorn@Mercy.net
mailto:Christopher.Newby@Mercy.Net
mailto:michael.herr@mercy.net
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://www.facebook.com/FollowMercy__;!!EErPFA7f--AJOw!CxfMfolOl4n84Vf8iSNo-hG1syBUuoRH6HdCt_2Pyz3F-duNktD95ojpFyf831uX2lUmAZUQaQJIYjjMXurYA_ZvSCE-Qg$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://www.linkedin.com/company/mercy__;!!EErPFA7f--AJOw!CxfMfolOl4n84Vf8iSNo-hG1syBUuoRH6HdCt_2Pyz3F-duNktD95ojpFyf831uX2lUmAZUQaQJIYjjMXurYA_bSGrXLPw$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://www.instagram.com/Follow_Mercy/__;!!EErPFA7f--AJOw!CxfMfolOl4n84Vf8iSNo-hG1syBUuoRH6HdCt_2Pyz3F-duNktD95ojpFyf831uX2lUmAZUQaQJIYjjMXurYA_ZOY94WJg$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://mercy.net/__;!!EErPFA7f--AJOw!CxfMfolOl4n84Vf8iSNo-hG1syBUuoRH6HdCt_2Pyz3F-duNktD95ojpFyf831uX2lUmAZUQaQJIYjjMXurYA_ZsKL1qLA$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://mercy.net/mercy-careers__;!!EErPFA7f--AJOw!CxfMfolOl4n84Vf8iSNo-hG1syBUuoRH6HdCt_2Pyz3F-duNktD95ojpFyf831uX2lUmAZUQaQJIYjjMXurYA_b8pc1O5Q$
mailto:Mackinzey.Fick@health.mo.gov
mailto:Michael.Herr@Mercy.Net

CERTIFICATE OF NEED APPLICATION

PROJECT #6100 HS
ACQUIRE SECOND DAVINCI XI ROBOTIC SYSTEM

Mercy Hospital Joplin
Joplin, MO

SUBMITTED TO
MISSOURI HEALTH FACILITIES REVIEW COMMITTEE

May 1, 2024
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NEW OR ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT APPLICATION

— Applicant’s Completeness Checklist and Table of Contents

Project Name: Mercy Hospital Joplin Project No: 6100-HS

Project Description; add second da Vnci Xi System

Done Page N/A

Description
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Application Summary:

1. Applicant Identification and Certification (Form MO 580-1861)
2. Representative Registration (From MO 580-1869)
3. Proposed Project Budget (Form MO 580-1863) and detail sheet with documentation of costs.

Proposal Description:

Provide a complete detailed project description and include equipment bid quotes.

Provide a timeline of events for the project, from CON issuance through project completion.

Provide a legible city or county map showing the exact location of the project.

Define the community to be served and provide the geographic service area for the equipment.
Provide other statistics to document the size and validity of any user-defined geographic service area.

Identify specific community problems or unmet needs the proposal would address.

N R ebd =

Provide the historical utilization for each of the past three years and utilization projections through the
first three (3) FULL years of operation of the new equipment.
8. Provide the methods and assumptions used to project utilization.
9. Document that consumer needs and preferences have been included in planning this project and describe
how consumers had an opportunity to provide input.
10. Provide copies of any petitions, letters of support or opposition received.
11. Document that providers of similar health services in the proposed service area have been notified of the
application by a public notice in the local newspaper.
12. Document that providers of all affected facilities in the proposed service area were addressed letters
regarding the application.

Service Specific Criteria and Standards:

1. For new units, address the minimum annual utilization standard for the proposed geographic service area.
2. For any new unit where specific utilization standards are not listed, provide documentation to justify the
new unit.
3. For additional units, document compliance with the optimal utilization standard, and if not achieved,
provide documentation to justify the additional unit.
4. For evolving technology address the following:
- Medical effects as described and documented in published scientific literature;
- The degree to which the objectives of the technology have been met in practice;
- Any side effects, contraindications or environmental exposures;
- The relationships, if any, to existing preventive, diagnostic, therapeutic or management technologies and
the effects on the existing technologies;
- Food and Drug Administration approval;
- The need methodology used by this proposal in order to assess efficacy and cost impact of the proposal;
- The degree of partnership, if any, with other institutions for joint use and financing.

Financial Feasibility Review Criteria and Standards:

1. Document that sufficient financing is available by providing a letter from a financial institution or an
auditor's statement indicating that sufficient funds are available.

2. Provide Service-Specific Revenues and Expenses (Form MO 580-1865) projected through three (3) FULL
years beyond project completion.

3. Document how patient charges are derived.

4. Document responsiveness to the needs of the medically indigent.

MO 580-2503 (11/22)






DIVIDER I

APPLICATION SUMMARY






DIVIDER 1. APPLICATION SUMMARY:
1. APPLICATION IDENTIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION FORM
(FORM MO 580-1861)

See Attached Form.

2. REPRESENTATIVE REGISTRATION (FORM MO 580-1869)
See Attached Form.

3. PROPOSED PROJECT BUDGET (FORM MO 580-1863) AND DETAIL
SHEET

See Attached Form.





Rt Certificate of Need Program

—[—  APPLICANT IDENTIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION

The information provided must match the Letter of Intent for this project, without exception.

1. Project Location (Attach additional pages as necessary to identify multiple project sites.)

Title of Proposed Project Project Number

Add Second da Vinci Xi System 6100 HS

Project Address (Street/ City/ State/Zip Code)

100 Mercy Way / Joplin / MO / 64804

County

Newton

2. Applicant Identification (Information must agree with previously submitted Letter of Intent.)

List All Owner(s): (List corporate entity.) Address (Street/City/State/Zip Code) Telephone Number

Mercy Health 14528 Outer Forty Road / Suite 100 / Chesterfield / MO / 63017 |314-579-6100

(List entity to be
List All Operator(s): iicensed or certified.) Address (Street/City/State/Zip Code) Telephone Number

Mercy Hospital Joplin 100 Mercy Way / Joplin / MO / 64804 417-556-3729

3. Ownership (Check applicable category.)

Nonprofit Corporation [] Individual L] city [l District

[] Partnership [l Corporation [] County [] Other

4. Certification

In submitting this project application, the applicant understands that:

(A) The review will be made as to the community need for the proposed beds or equipment in this
application;

(B) In determining community need, the Missouri Health Facilities Review Committee (Committee) will
consider all similar beds or equipment within the service area;

(C) The issuance of a Certificate of Need (CON) by the Committee depends on conformance with its Rules
and CON statute;

(D) A CON shall be subject to forfeiture for failure to incur an expenditure on any approved project six (6)
months after the date of issuance, unless obligated or extended by the Committee for an additional six
(6) months:

(E) Notification will be provided to the CON Program staff if and when the project is abandoned; and

(F) A CON, if issued, may not be transferred, relocated, or modified except with the consent of the
Committee.

We certify the information and date in this application as accurate to the best of our knowledge and belief by our
representative’s signature below:

5. Authorized Contact Person (Attach a Contact Person Correction Form if different from the Letter of Intent.)

Name of Contact Person Title
Michael Herr Chief Operating Officer - Mercy Hospital Joplin
Telephone Number Fax Number E-mail Address
417-556-2744 / 417-556-2807 michael.herr@mercy.net
/ pal

/ £
SiW&W Date of §lgnatu;
\ ' I

MO 580-186 Vos/ 13)






R Certificate of Need Program

— [L—  REPRESENTATIVE REGISTRATION

(A registration form must be completed for each project presented.)

Project Name

Number

Mercy Hospital Joplin - Add Second da Vinci Xi System 6100 HS

(Please type or print legibly.)

Name of Representative Title

Jeremy S. Drinkwitz

Firm/Corporation/Association of Representative (may be different from below, e.g., law firm, consultant, other} Telephone Number

Mercy Hospital Joplin 417-556-2177

Address (Street/City/State/Zip Code)

100 Mercy Way / Joplin / MO / 64804

Who's interests are being represented?

(If more

than one, submit a separate Representative Registration Form for each.)

Name of Individual/Agency/Corporation/Organization being Represented Telephone Number

Address (Street/City/State/Zip Code)

Check one. Do you: Relationship to Project:
¥ Support [] None
[l Oppose (¥4 Employee
[] Neutral [] Legal Counsel
[] Consultant
[] Lobbyist

]

Other Information: Other (explain):

I attest that to the best of my belief and knowledge the testimony and information presented by
me is truthful, represents factual information, and is in compliance with §197.326.1 RSMo
which says: Any person who is paid either as part of his normal employment or as a lobbyist to
support or oppose any project before the health facilities review committee shall register as a
lobbyist pursuant to chapter 105 RSMo, and shall also register with the staff of the health
facilities review committee for every project in which such person has an interest and indicate
whether such person supports or opposes the named project. The registration shall also include
the names and addresses of any person, firm, corporation or association that the person
registering represents in relation to the named project. Any person violating the provisions of this
subsection shall be subject to the penalties specified in § 105.478, RSMo.

Original Si 4

Date

/@ | C/éf%oz/

MO 580-18692’/’/

President - Mercy Hospital Joplin






T =sl==tg Certificate of Need Program

‘7_{.:’ REPRESENTATIVE REGISTRATION

(A registration form must be completed for each project presented.)

Project Namne

Mercy Hospital Joplin - Add Second da Vinci Xi System

Number

6100 HS

(Please type or print legibly.)

Name of Representative

Michael Herr

Title

COO - Mercy Hospital Joplin

Firm/Corporation/Association of Representative (may be different from below, e.g., law firm, consultant, other)

Mercy Hospital Joplin

Telephone Number

417-556-2444

Address (Street/City/State/Zip Code)

100 Mercy Way / Joplin / MO / 64804

Who’s interests are being represented?

(If more than one, submit a separate Representative Registration Form for each.)

Name of Individual /Agency/Corporation/Organization being Represented

Telephone Number

Address (Street/City/State/Zip Code}

Check one. Do you: Relationship to Project:
[4 Support [] None
[ Oppose ¥ Employee
[] Neutral [l Legal Counsel
L] Consultant
L] Lobbyist
Other Information: L] Other (explain):

I attest that to the best of my belief and knowledge the testimony and information presented by
me is truthful, represents factual information, and is in compliance with §197.326.1 RSMo
which says: Any person who is paid either as part of his normal employment or as a lobbyist to
support or oppose any project before the health facilities review committee shall register as a
lobbyist pursuant to chapter 105 RSMo, and shall also register with the staff of the health
facilities review committee for every project in which such person has an interest and indicate
whether such person supports or opposes the named project. The registration shall also include
the names and addresses of any person, firm, corporation or association that the person
registering represents in relation to the named project. Any person violating the provisions of this
su se7ctzon shall be subject to the penalties specified in § 105.478, RSMo.

,,S@T i J/

MO seb 1@9 E#l/Ol/
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=l Certificate of Need Program
O_Lt’ PROPOSED PROJECT BUDGET
Description Dollars
COSTS:* (Fill in every line, even if the amount is “$0”.)
New Construction Costs *** $0
Renovation Costs *** $0

3. Subtotal Construction Costs (#1 plus #2) $0
4. Architectural/Engineering Fees $0
S. Other Equipment (not in construction contract) $0
6. Major Medical Equipment $2,150,750
7. Land Acquisition Costs *** $0
8. Consultants’ Fees/Legal Fees *** $0
9. Interest During Construction (net of interest earned) *** $0
10. Other Costs *** $0
11. Subtotal Non-Construction Costs (sum of #4 through #10 $2,150,750
12. Total Project Development Costs (#3 plus #11) $2,150,750 #x

FINANCING:
13. Unrestricted Funds $2,150,750
14. Bonds $0
15. Loans $0
16. Other Methods (specify) $0

17. Total Project Financing (sum of #13 through #16) $2,150,750 #+

18. New Construction Total Square Footage 0
19. New Construction Costs Per Square Foot ***** $0
20. Renovated Space Total Square Footage 0

$0

21. Renovated Space Costs Per Square Foot ******

* Attach additional page(s) detailing how each line item was determined, including all methods and
assumptions used. Provide documentation of all major costs.

** These amounts should be the same.
***  Capitalizable items to be recognized as capital expenditures after project completion.

**** Include as Other Costs the following: other costs of financing; the value of existing lands, buildings and
equipment not previously used for health care services, such as a renovated house converted to residential
care, determined by original cost, fair market value, or appraised value; or the fair market value of any
leased equipment or building, or the cost of beds to be purchased.

***x% Divide new construction costs by total new construction square footage.

**+x4x  Divide renovation costs by total renovation square footage.

MO 580-1863 (02/13)






DIVIDER I1

PROPOSAL DESCRIPTION





DIVIDER II. PROPOSAL DESCRIPTION:

1. PROVIDE A COMPLETE DETAILED PROJECT DESCRIPTION
AND INCLUDE EQUIPMENT BID QUOTES.

Project includes acquisition of a second daVinci Xi Robotic System to support
our robotic platform in surgical and cancer care at Mercy Joplin. This
equipment acquisition will also serve as a bridge in accomplishing increased
access of current robotic equipment to support robotic surgical care in the
specialties of General Surgery, OB/GYN Surgery, Urological Surgery and
Cardiothoracic Surgery. The cost for acquisition of all associated medical
equipment is $2,150,750 and total cost for the proposed acquisition is
$2,150,750.

New equipment is needed to support the Ministry’s initiative of expanding
minimally invasive surgery for patients. Minimally invasive surgery reduces
length of stay, improves patient outcomes and recovery, and reduces potential
for surgical site infections. The Xi platform uses a magnified 3D HD vision,
endowrist instrumentation and intuitive motion with enhanced ergonomics to
deliver the best and most advanced patient care. Energy sources are
integrated into the platform eliminating the need for additional equipment in
the room. The addition of this equipment will increase access to robotic care
for patients as well as improve efficiency for better patient flow and
outcomes.

See attached quotes. The Intuitive Surgical daVinci Xi System equipment
cost is $2,150,750.

2. PROVIDE A TIMELINE OF EVENTS FOR THE PROJECT FROM
CON ISSUANCE THROUGH PROJECT COMPLETION
Upon receiving CON Issuance in July 2024 Mercy Hospital Joplin would
propose to purchase the second da Vinci Xi Surgical Platform in our
FY2025 2nd quarter of October through December 2024. Intuitive Lead
time for delivery of the Xi platform is 2-4 weeks and Mercy Joplin would
anticipate having the second da Vinci Xi Surgical Platform in utilization in
January of 2025.

3. PROVIDE A LEGIBLE CITY OR COUNTY MAP SHOWING THE
EXACT LOCATION OF THE PROJECT.

The new unit will be located within the operating suites at Mercy Hospital
Joplin, 100 Mercy Way, Joplin, Missouri. A map of Mercy’s service areas
is attached.






4. DEFINE THE COMMUNITY TO BE SERVED.

Below is a summary table that outlines projected 2022 population for each of
Mercy Hospital Joplin’s primary service area counties. The majority of
patients originate from these counties, along with our 17 county regional
service area. Total projected population for 2022 in Mercy’s primary service
area totals 366,910. The data source for this information is Missouri Hospital
Data Institute — census data is broken down by counties.

2022 PROJECTED
COUNTY POPULATION

Barton 11,404
Cherokee 18,402
Crawford 40,214
Delaware 43,292
Jasper 142,685
McDonald 23,033
Newton 40423
OTTAWA 28,917
VERNON 18,540
PSA TOTAL 366,910

5. PROVIDE 2022 POPULATION POPULATION PROJECTIONS FOR THE
PROPOSED GEOGRAPHIC SERVICE AREA

Projected population data for Mercy's primary service area counties is listed
above for 2022, which is the data that is available at the time of this
application.

6. PROVIDE OTHER STATISTICS TO DOCUMENT THE SIZE AND
VALIDITY OF ANY USER-DEFINED GEOGRAPHIC SERVICE AREA.

Missouri Hospital Institute reports 11,993 inpatient discharges for federal
fiscl year 202 for Mercy Hospital Joplin and a total of 174,464 outpatient
discharges. Outpatient discharges include emergency department visits,
bservatin patients, surgeries, and clinical outpatient visits. The majority of
these discharges is derived from the primary service area that has been
presented. This defined service area has been consistently accepted by the
CON committee with precious CON applications.





IDENTIFY SPECIFIC COMMUNITY PROBLEMS OR UNMET
NEEDS THE PROPOSAL WOULD ADDRESS.

This addition of this second da Vinci Xi system will enhance the level of
technology and availability to patients that reside in Mercy Joplin’s Service
area. It will support the increase in minimally invasive surgeries and decrease
delays in access to the advanced technology for the patients we serve.

PROVIDE HISTORICAL UTILIZATION FOR EACH OF THE PAST
THREE YEARS AND UTILIZATION PROJECTIONS THROUGH
THE FIRST THREE FULL YEARS OF OPERATION OF THE NEW
EQUIPMENT.

FY2021 321
FY2022 365
FY2023 457
Projected:

FY2026 920
FY2027 967
FY2028 1015

PROVIDE THE METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS USED TO
PROJECT UTILIZATION.

Mercy Hospital Joplin uses a fiscal year reporting period that runs from July
1 — June 30. All utilization quantities and projections are based on this
reporting method.

In order to project utilization, historical procedure trends were reviewed.
Also, these projections take into consideration the upward trend in cancer care
surgical specialty. Numbers projected are considered conservative as it does
not include expansion into other surgical specialties such as Colorectal,
OB/GYN and Bariatrics, which is planned as a future expansion opportunity.
However, with current equipment, expansion opportunities do not exist with
access restraints. Projected growth also includes additional payor contracts
that have gone into effect recently for Mercy Joplin.
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10.

11.

12.

DOCUMENT THAT CONSUMER NEEDS AND PREFERENCES HAVE
BEEN INCLUDED IN PLANNING THIS PROJECT AND DESCRIBE
HOW CONSUMERS HAD AN OPPORTUNITY TO PROVIDE INPUT.

There has not been any direct new releases to patients, however minimally
invasive surgery is on the rise. It reduces length of stay, improves patient
outcomes and recovery and reduces potential for surgical site infections. Data
supports these statements and gives reasoning behind this request in our
strategic planning as a Ministry. Also, the movement of robotic services to an
outpatient setting, when possible, will increase patient satisfaction and
efficiency for better patient flow.

Increasing access within the facility will allow new physician recruitment and
expansion of surgical service lines.

PROVIDE COPIES OF ANY PETITIONS, LETTERS OF SUPPORT
OR OPPOSITION RECEIVED.

There is no known opposition to the proposed request. Letters of support to
move forward with this technology are attached.

DOCUMENT THAT PROVIDERS OF ALL AFFECTED
FACILITIES IN THE PROPOSED SERVICE WERE ADDRESSED
LETTERS REGARDING THE APPLICATION.

See attached letter to Freeman Health Systems.

11





INTUITIVE

Intuitive Surgical, Inc.
1020 Kifer Road
Sunnyvale, CA 94086

Quote Details

800-876-1310

Company Information

Quote ID Q-00043756 Hospital Name Mercy Hospital Joplin
Quote Date 2/21/2024 SF ID/IDN Affiliation 13338/Mercy

Valid Until 07/31/2024 Address 100 Mercy Way

Sales Rep Kevin Mitchell City, State, Zip Joplin, Missouri, 64804
Phone Number +1-956-451-8317 Contact Name

Email kevin.mitchell@intusurg.com Telephone

Please submit orders electronically via GHX or fax to 408-523-2377

Part Number [ Qty [ ltem

| Price

| Subtotal

Systems

da Vinci Xi® Single Console System

One (1): da Vinci Xi System Surgeon Console
One (1): da Vinci Xi System Patient Cart

One (1): da Vinci Xi System Vision Cart

da Vinci Xi System Documentation
da Vinci Xi System Software Training
Instrument Starter Kit

Accessory Starter Kit

Drapes

Vision Equipment

(All Kits subject to change without notice)

$ 1,900,000.00

$1,900,000.00

Simulators

Da Vinci SimNow Simulator Includes items*377773 Simulator,
SimNow600092

First year of SimNow Service & Benefits (included with new
placement. Not included for trades)

$ 100,000.00

$ 100,000.00

Upgrades

E-100 Generator

$ 25,000.00

$ 25,000.00

Da Vinci Xi Table Motion Upgrade

$ 75,000.00

$ 75,000.00

Intuitive Hub (Orpheus System) containing:
- Media Manager
- Telepresence

$ 40,000.00

$ 40,000.00

Freight

System Freight - Central (AR, IA, IL, KS, LA, MN, MO, ND, NE,
OK, SD,
TX, WI)

$10,750.00

$ 10,750.00

Total

$ 2,150,750.00

Part Number | Months | ltem

Price |

Annual Service Fee

Service

12

da Vinci Xi-Single Console-Human Use (Systems)-
SERVICE PLAN : DVCOMPLETE CARE-Warranty
(Included)

$0.00

$0.00

48

da Vinci Xi-Single Console-Human Use (Systems)-
SERVICE PLAN : DVCOMPLETE CARE-After Warranty
Service (Annual)

$ 154,000.00

$ 154,000.00

12






SIMULATOR,ANNUAL SERVICE,IS3000,1S4000,1-

12 Subscription (Included) $0.00 $0.00
SIMULATOR,ANNUAL SERVICE,IS3000,1S4000,I-
48 Subscription Fee $20,000.00 $20,000.00

Terms and Conditions

1) System Terms and Conditions:

1.1 A signed Sales, License, and Service Agreement ("SLSA") or equivalent is required prior to shipment of the System(s). All site
modifications and preparation are the Customer’s responsibility and are to be completed to the specification given by Intuitive Surgical prior
to the installation date. Delivery is subject to credit approval. Payment terms are Net 30 days from Intuitive Surgical's invoice date. Each
System includes the patient side cart, vision cart, and surgeon console(s). System enhancements required to support new features may be
purchased at Intuitive Surgical's then current list price. The price of the da Vinci® Surgical System includes the initial installation of the
System at Customer's facility and a one (1) year warranty for manufacture defect. All taxes and shipping charges are the responsibility of the
Customer and will be added to the invoice, as appropriate.

1.2 Intuitive makes no representation with regard to Certificate of Need requirements for this purchase. It is your (the Customer’s)
responsibility to determine whether this purchase complies with your State’s Certificate of Need laws and what Certificate of Need filing, if
any, needs to be made with regard to this purchase.

1.3 Customer acknowledges that the cleaning and sterilization equipment, not provided by Intuitive, is required to appropriately reprocess da
Vinci instruments and endoscopes. Please refer to the Intuitive Surgical Reprocessing website:

https://reprocessing.intuitivesurgical.com. Customer is responsible for ensuring that its’ cleaning and sterilization program comply with all
health and safety requirements.

2) System Upgrade Terms and Conditions:

2.1 A signed Purchase Order and/or an addendum to the existing Sales, License, and Service Agreement ("SLSA") is required prior to
shipment of the System upgrade. All site modifications and preparation are the Customer’s responsibility and are to be completed with the
specification given by Intuitive Surgical prior to the installation date.

2.2 Payment terms are Net 30 days from Intuitive Surgical’s invoice date. The price includes: the System upgrade, the initial installation at
Customer's facility and a one (1) year warranty for manufacture defect. All taxes and shipping charges are the responsibility of the Customer
and will be added to the invoice, as appropriate. Delivery is subject to credit approval and inventory availability. Standard shipping terms are
FCA from Intuitive Surgical™ warehouse. A $9.95 handling charge will be applied for any shipments using a customer designated carrier.

3) I&A Terms and Conditions:

3.1 To place an order, please fax Purchase Order to Intuitive Surgical Customer Service at 408-523-2377 or submit through the Global
Health Exchange (GHX). Payment Terms Net 30 days from invoice date. Delivery is subject to credit approval by Intuitive Surgical.
Estimated 2-Day standard delivery. Standard shipping terms are FCA from Intuitive Surgical™ warehouse and are subject to inventory
availability. All taxes and shipping charges are the responsibility of the Customer and will be added to the invoice, as appropriate. Pricing is
subject to change without notice. A $9.95 handlingcharge will be applied for any shipments using a customer designated carrier.

4) Return Goods Policy :

4.1 All returns must be authorized through Intuitive Surgical Customer Service, please call 800-876-1310 to obtain a Return Material
Authorization Number (RMA#). All items must be accompanied with valid RMA# for processing and are requested to be received within 14
days of issuance or the RMA could be subject to cancellation. Intuitive Surgical will prepay for the return of the defective instruments. Upon
identification of a defective instrument, please call Intuitive Surgical Customer Service within 5 business days. Prior to returning to Intuitive
Surgical, items must be cleaned and decontaminated in accordance with the then current local environmental and safety laws and
standards. For all excess inventory returns, items are required to be in the original packaging with no markings, seals intact, and to have
been purchased within the last 12 months. Package excess returned inventory in a separate shipping container to prevent damage to
original product packaging.

5) Exchange Goods Policy :

5.1 Repairs to Endoscope, Camera Head and Skills Simulators may qualify for Intuitive Surgical advanced exchange program. Please
contact Customer Service or send email to CustomerSupport-ServiceSupport@intusurg.com to obtain information on our current exchange
program.

6) Credit Policy :

6.1 Intuitive Surgical will issue credit against original purchase order after full inspection is complete. Credit for defective returns: Intuitive
Surgical will issue credit on products based on failure analysis performed and individual warranty terms. For instruments, credit will be issued

2/4

13






for the remaining lives, plus one additional life to compensate for usage at the time the issue was identified. Evidence of negligence, misuse
and mishandling will not qualify for credit. Credit for excess inventory returns: Excess Inventory returns will be valued at the invoice price.
Original packaging must be unmarked, undamaged and seals intact to qualify for credit. Credit will be issued if the products were shipped
less than 12 months prior to return request, the original package is intact and the product is within expiration date. Intuitive Surgical will retain
all returned product.

7) Miscellaneous :

7.1 Warranty: Warranties are applied for manufacturing defects. Endoscope, Camera, Simulator, and System upgrades — 1 year warranty.
Accessories — 90 day warranty. Instruments: see above for credit.

7.2 Any term or condition contained in your purchase order or similar forms which is different from, inconsistent with, or in addition to these
terms shall be void and of no effect unless agreed to in writing and signed by your authorized representative and authorized representative
of Intuitive Surgical. The terms and conditions of this quote, including pricing, are confidential and proprietary information of Intuitive Surgical
and shall not be disclosed to any third party without the consent of Intuitive Surgical.

For questions please contact Customer Service at 800-876-1310

3/4
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EXHIBIT A
Deliverables, Price and Delivery

da Vinci® Xi™ Single Console System (Firefly™ Fluorescence Imaging Enabled)

One (1): da Vinci® Xi™ System Surgeon Console
One (1): da Vinci® Xi™ System Patient Cart
One (1) da Vinci® Xi™ System Vision Cart
Warranty period: One (1) year from the Acceptance.

da Vinci® Xi™ System Documentation including:
User's Manual For System
Warranty period: n/a

User's Manual for Instruments and Accessories
Warranty period: n/a

One (1) da Vinci® Xi™ Cleaning & Sterilization Kit
Warranty period: 90 days from Acceptance
Two (2) da Vinci® Xi™ Instrument Release Kit (IRK)
Warranty period: 90 days from Acceptance

da Vinci® Xi™ System Software
Warranty period: One (1) year from the Acceptance.

Instrument and Accessories including:

Accessory Starter Kit
Two (2): Box of 6: 8 mm Bladeless Obturator
One (1): 8 mm Blunt Obturator
Four (4): Box of 10: 5 mm - 8 mm Universal Seal
Four (4): 8 mm Cannula
Three (3): Monopolar Energy Instrument Cord
Three (3): Bipolar Energy Instrument Cord
One (1): Box of 3: da Vinci® Xi™ Gage Pin
Three (3): Instrument Introducer
One (1): Box of 10: Tip Cover for Hot Shears™ (MCS)
One (1): Pmed Cable, Covidien ForceTraid ESU

Warranty period: 90 days from Acceptance

Drapes
Two (2): Pack of 20 da Vinci® Xi™ Arm Drape
One (1): Pack of 20 da Vinci® Xi™ Column Drape
Warranty period: 90 days from Acceptance

Vision Equipment:
Two (2): da Vinci® Xi™ Endoscope with Camera, 8 mm 0 degree
Two (2): da Vinci® Xi™ Endoscope with Camera, 8 mm 30 degree
Four (4): da Vinci® Xi™ Endoscope Sterilization Trays
Warranty period: One (1) year from the Acceptance.

Training Instrument Starter Kit
One (1): Large Needle Driver
One (1): ProGrasp™ Forceps
One (1): Maryland Bipolar Forceps
One (1): Hot Shears™ (Monopolar Curved Scissors)
One (1): Tip-Up Fenestrated Grasper
One (1): Mega™ SutureCut™ Needle Driver
Warranty period: 90 days from Acceptance

(all kits subject to change without notice) (rev 4/2015)
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System Hospital Inpatient Total Assets Revenue Profit
Affiliation ID Hospital City, State Type Beds Discharges . Births (millions) (millions) Margin
Mercy Hospital Joplin Joplin, MO Acute 240 12,997 1,374 $172 $269 6.3%
Mercy Hospital Carthage Carthage, MO Critical Access 25 854 0 $34 $58 8.5%
Mercy Hospital Columbus Columbus, KS Critical Access 25 89 0 S1 S6 16.7%
Mercy Specialty Hospital SE Kansas Galena, KS Acute 36 352 0 $82 $39 0.0%
Freeman Health System Joplin, MO Acute 381 15,334 1,659 $747 $582 6.4%
Freeman Health System
Freeman Neosho Hospital Neosho, MO Critical Access 25 649 0 $78 $31 4.5%
Ascension Via Chri Ascension Via Christi Hospital Pittsburg Pittsburg, KS Acute 76 2,880 550 S$77 $99 -7.6%
Integris Miami Hospital Miami, OK Acute 36 2,262 446 S5 S46 -16.6%
Integris Health i
Integris Grove General Hospital Grove, OK Acute 41 1,611 380 $49 $52 -11.5%
Cox Barton County Hospital Lamar, MO Critical Access 25 584 0 $23 $23 -9.8%
Independent Girard Medical Center Girard, KS Critical Access 33 542 0 $20 $19 -14.9%
Nevada Regional Medical Center Nevada, MO Acute 71 1,866 320 $40 $39 -20.0%

Sources: Mercy - Mercy Finance, FY2023; all other inpatient discharges and births - HIDI Analytics, CY2022 and Oklahoma Dept. of Health, CY2021; beds (all bed types/total complex) and financials (hospital financials only) - AHD (reporting year may vary by provider)
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Joplin Community Demographics

Service Area - 2022

372,872

Age Groups

0-17 88,296 23.7% 87,358

18-44 124,564 33.4% 125,753

45-64 91,910 24.6% 87,208

65+ 68,102 18.3% 75,107

PSA Missouri

Median Age 38 36
Median Household Income S49k S49k
High School Grad or Greater  88% 91%

Source: Advisory Board Demographic Estimates, 2022-2027 (EDAO/Market intelligence)

Top Employers
Company

Freeman Health System

Mercy Hospital Joplin

Joplin Public Schools

Tamko Building Products, Inc.

Liberty Utilities

Jasper Products, LLC

Alorica

MO Dept of Transportation-Joplin

CFI

City of Joplin

Source: Mercy Business Development, June 2023

Industry

Health Care

Health Care

Education
Manufacturing/Construction
Utility Service
Manufacturing

IT Business Processes
Government
Finance/Investment training

Government

23.3%
33.5%
23.2%
20.0%

us
33
$52k
89%

Staff

2,205
1,192
1,480
1,000
896
825
743
714
567
531

Service Area - 2027 5-Year Growth

375,426 0.7%

-1.1%
1.0%
-5.1%
10.3%

Missouri

6,184,472

1,389,477
2,159,712
1,548,775
1,086,508

Broken A rr'oTy

2022 Mapbox © OpenStreetMap {

22.5%
34.9%
25.0%
17.6%

Mercyt

us

333,427,080

73,967,490 22.2%
119,460,917 35.8%
83,886,133 25.2%
56,112,540 16.8%

5-Year % Growth

5 Year Growth

o.00 [ T 7.1%
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Mercyr

Mercy Hospital Joplin
100 Mercy Way

Joplin, MO 64804
417-781-2727
www.mercy.net

April 23, 2024

Certificate of Need Program Coordinator
c/o Jeremy S. Drinkwitz, President

Mercy Hospital Joplin

100 Mercy Way

Joplin, MO 64804

To Whom It May Concern:

| am writing this letter in support of Mercy's request to purchase a second daVinci Xi
Robotic System for use within Mercy Hospital Joplin. This equipment will certainly
enhance the level of care available for the residents of this region. As a major referral
center that serves a large geographic area, it is imperative that our facility has the latest
technology available to deliver treatment to our patients. This unit will provide a natural
extension of the surgeon's vision and hands using magnified 30 HD vision, endowrist
instrumentation and intuitive motion. The integrated fluorescence imaging provides real
time image guided identification of key anatomical landmarks which increases our
patient's safety. Increased visualization and enhanced motion will improve quality of care
and increase efficiencies.

| urge your favorable consideration of this certificate of need application. As a physician, |
appreciate Mercy's desire to maintain the highest level of care of all residents in the Four

States area.

Sincerely,

Surgery’Department
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M T
Mercy Hospital Joplin
100 Mercy Way
Joplin, MO 64804

417-781-2727
www.mercy.net

April 23, 2024

Certificate of Need Program Coordinator
c/o Jeremy S. Drinkwitz, President

Mercy Hospital Joplin

100 Mercy Way

Joplin, MO 64804

To Whom It May Concern:

| am writing this letter in support of Mercy's request to purchase a second daVinci Xi
Robotic System for use within Mercy Hospital Joplin. This equipment will certainly
enhance the level of care available for the residents of this region. As a major referral
center that serves a large geographic area, it is imperative that our facility has the latest
technology available to deliver treatment to our patients. This unit will provide a natural
extension of the surgeon's vision and hands using magnified 30 HD vision, endowrist
instrumentation and intuitive motion. The integrated fluorescence imaging provides real
time image guided identification of key anatomical landmarks which increases our
patient's safety. Increased visualization and enhanced motion will improve quality of care
and increase efficiencies.

| urge your favorable consideration of this certificate of need application. As a physician, |
appreciate Mercy's desire to maintain the highest level of care of all residents in the Four
States area.

Sincerely,

Danny Liu, MD
Surgery Department
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Mercy Hospital Joplin
Administration
100 Mercy Way

Joplin, MO 64804

. 417-781-2727
April 29,2024 www.mercy.net

Certificate of Need Program Coordinator
c/o Jeremy S. Drinkwitz, President
Mercy Hospital Joplin

100 Mercy Way

Joplin MO 64804

To whom it may concern:

I am writing this letter in support of Mercy's request to purchase the second daVinci Xi
Robotic System for use with the Mercy Hospital Joplin. This equipment will enhance the level
of care available for the residents of our region. As a major referral center that serves a large
geographic area, it is imperative that our facility has the latest technology available to deliver
treatment to our patients. This unit will provide a natural extension of the surgeon's vision
and hand, using magnified 30 HD vision endowrist instrumentation and intuitive motion. The
integrated fluorescentimaging provides real-time imaged-guided identification of key
anatomical landmarks which increases the patient’s safety. Increased visual an enhanced
motion will improve quality of care and increase efficiencies.

I urge your favorable consideration of this certificate of need application. As the president of
Mercy Hospital Joplin, I appreciate the Mercy Ministry’s desire to maintain the highest level
of care for all residents in our four-state area.

]er(ZfrfS.D/' , i
Merey-He€alth Southwest Missouri, Kansas Communities
Mercy Hospital Joplin
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M T
Mercy Hospital Joplin
100 Mercy Way
Joplin, MO 64804

417-781-2727
www.mercy.net

April 23, 2024

Certificate of Need Program Coordinator
c/o Jeremy S. Drinkwitz, President

Mercy Hospital Joplin

100 Mercy Way

Joplin, MO 64804

To Whom It May Concern:

| am writing this letter in support of Mercy's request to purchase a second daVinci Xi
Robotic System for use within Mercy Hospital Joplin. This equipment will certainly
enhance the level of care available for the residents of this region. As a major referral
center that serves a large geographic area, it is imperative that our facility has the latest
technology available to deliver treatment to our patients. This unit will provide a natural
extension of the surgeon's vision and hands using magnified 30 HD vision, endowrist
instrumentation and intuitive motion. The integrated fluorescence imaging provides real
time image guided identification of key anatomical landmarks which increases our
patient's safety. Increased visualization and enhanced motion will improve quality of care
and increase efficiencies.

| urge your favorable consideration of this certificate of need application. As a physician, |
appreciate Mercy's desire to maintain the highest level of care of all residents in the Four
States area.

Smcerely,

( C/harles Ro, MD /

Surgery Department
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Mercyr
Mercy Hospital Joplin
100 Mercy Way
Joplin, MO 64804
417-781-2727
www.mercy.net

April 23,2024

Certificate of Need Program Coordinator
c/o Jeremy S. Drinkwitz, President

Mercy Hospital Joplin

100 Mercy Way

Joplin, MO 64804

To Whom It May Concern:

| am writing this letter in support of Mercy's request to purchase a second daVinci Xi
Robotic System for use within Mercy Hospital Joplin. This equipment will certainly
enhance the level of care available for the residents of this region. As a major referral
center that serves a large geographic area, it is imperative that our facility has the latest
technology available to deliver treatment to our patients. This unit will provide a natural
extension of the surgeon's vision and hands using magnified 30 HD vision, endowrist
instrumentation and intuitive motion. The integrated fluorescence imaging provides real
time image guided identification of key anatomical landmarks which increases our
patient's safety. Increased visualization and enhanced motion will improve quality of care
and increase efficiencies.

| urge your favorable consideration of this certificate of need application. As a physician, |
appreciate Mercy's desire to maintain the highest level of care of all residents in the Four
States area.

Heath Merkley, MD
OB/GYN Department
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MercyTr

Mercy Hospital Joplin
100 Mercy Way

Joplin, MO 64804
417-781-2727
www.mercy.net

April 23, 2024

Certificate of Need Program Coordinator
c/o Jeremy S. Drinkwitz, President

Mercy Hospital Joplin

100 Mercy Way

Joplin, MO 64804

To Whom It May Concern:

| am writing this letter in support of Mercy's request to purchase a second daVinci Xi
Robotic System for use within Mercy Hospital Joplin. This equipment will certainly
enhance the level of care available for the residents of this region. As a major referral
center that serves a large geographic area, it is imperative that our facility has the latest
technology available to deliver treatment to our patients. This unit will provide a natural
extension of the surgeon's vision and hands using magnified 30 HD vision, endowrist
instrumentation and intuitive motion. The integrated fluorescence imaging provides real
time image guided identification of key anatomical landmarks which increases our
patient's safety. Increased visualization and enhanced motion will improve quality of care
and increase efficiencies.

| urge your favorable consideration of this certificate of need application. As a physician, |
appreciate Mercy's desire to maintain the highest level of care of all residents in the Four
States area.

Sincere /
f

Marc Mllsten MD
Urology Department
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M T
Mercy Hospital Joplin
Administration
100 Mercy Way

Joplin, MO 64804

417-781-2727
May 20, 2024 : www.mercy.net

CERTIFIED MAIL 7018 0360 0001 4789 4781

Freeman Health Systems
c/o Administration

1102 West 329 Street
Joplin, MO 64804

| am writing on behalf of Mercy Hospital Joplin to express our intent to acquire a second da
Vinci Surgical System as part of our commitment to advancing healthcare technology and
improving patient outcomes. The da Vinci has been instrumental in enhancing surgical
precision, reducing recovery times, and expanding our capabilities.

The demand for robotic-assisted surgery continues to grow, and our current system is
operating at capacity. A second robot will allow us to serve more patients efficiently. Mercy
Hospital Joplin aims to maintain Clinical Excellence by providing state-of-the-art technology.
A second da Vinci robot aligns with this commitment. Our hospital serves a diverse
community, and the availability of a second robot would improve access to minimally
invasive surgical options.

With two robots we can accommodate more surgeries, reduce wait times for patients thus
enhancing care for patients in the area. The second system will allow us to offer additional
robotic-assisted procedures across various specialties.

This letter is our notification that we are in the process of a formal certificate of needs
application to obtain approval for the second da Vinci robot.

Please feel free to contact me directly if you need further information or wish to discuss the
matter in detail. We look forward to you supporting an advanced healthcare technology at
Mercy Hospital Joplin. Thank you for your attention to this important notification.

Sin((7 y/[(/
Michael Herr, Chief Operating Officer
Mercy Hospital Joplin
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Mercy Hospital
Administraton
100 Mercy Way

7018 03k0 0001 4789 4781

Joplin, MO 64804

sman Health Systems

Administration
2 West 32nd Street

in, MO 64804

U.S. Postal Service™
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COMPLETE THIS SECTION ON DELIVERY

1

SENDER: COMPLETE THIS SECTION

® Complete items 1, 2, and 3.

® Print your name and address on the reverse

so that we can returr the card to you.
® Attach this card to the back of the mailpiece,

A. Signature

X

[ Agent
[J Addressee

B. Received by (Printed Name)

C. Date of Delivery

or on the front if space permits.

1.

Avtinle AAdAdvanmnad dos

Freeman Health Systems
c/o Administration

1102 West 32nd Street
Joplin, MO 64804
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9590 9402 4167 8092 0327 70

D. Is delivery address different from item 17 O Yes
If YES, enter delivery address below: [ No
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THE JOPLIN GLOBE
PO BOX 7
JOPLIN MO 64802-0007
(417)623-3480
Fax (417)623-1188

ORDER CONFIRMATION

Salesperson: SHARON FITZJOHN Printed at 04/25/24 14:48 by sfitz
Acct #: 121008 Ad #: 989315 Status: New CHOLD
MERCY HOSPITAL JOPLIN Start: 04/27/2024 Stop: 04/27/2024
BONNIE ZORN, EXEC ASSISTANT Times Ord: 1 Times Run: ***
SUITE 220 OFFICE 2341 STD 1.00 X 0.93 Words: 46
100 MERCY WAY Total STD 1.00
JOPLIN MO 64804 Class: 147 LEGALS

Rate: LD Cost: 40.69

# Affidavits: 1
Ad Descrpt: LEGAL 352/SURGICAL ROBOT

Contact: Descr Cont: (FIRST PUBLISHED APRIL 27
Phone: (417)556-2939 Given by: JORDAN LARIMORE

Fax#: P.O. #:

Email: Bonnita.Zorn@Mercy.Net Created: sfitz 04/25/24 14:26
Agency: Last Changed: sfitz 04/25/24 14:48
PUB ZONE EDT TP RUN DATES

JG A 97 S 04/27

INET A 10 S 04/27

AUTHORIZATION

Thank you for advertising in The Joplin Globe, our related publications and
online properties. If you are advertising in The Joplin Globe classifieds,
your ad will begin running on the start date noted above.

Please be sure to check your ad proof for any corrections. Although we are
happy to make corrections during our regular business hours, you are
responsible for checking your ad proof prior to the publish date. Also, we
reserve the right to edit or reclassify your ad to better serve buyers and
sellers.

We appreciate your business.

Name (print or type) Name (signature)

(First Published April 27, 2024)

PUBLIC NOTICE

Please note it is the intent of Mercy

Hospital Joplin to submit an application

on May 3, 2024 to the Missouri Health

Facilites Review Committee seeking

approval for the acquisition of a new
Surgical Robot for its facility.

(852)
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THE JOPLIN

P.O.Box 7. Joplin, Missouri 64802
Phone(417)623-3480
Fax(417)623-1188

MERCY HOSPITAL JOPLIN
BONNIE ZORN, EXEC ASSISTANT
SUITE 220 OFFICE 2341

100 MERCY WAY

JOPLIN MO 64804

AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION

State Of Missouri:

Counties Of Jasper/Newton

[, KIMBRA GREEN, being duly sworn according to law, STATE
that | am Accounting Clerk of THE JOPLIN GLOBE.

The Joplin Globe is a daily newspaper of general circulation in

the counties of Jasper/Newton, which has been admitted to the post

office as second-class matter in city of Joplin, the city of
publication: which newspaper has been published regularly and
consecutively for a period of three years and has a list of
bonafide subscribers voluntarily engaged as such, who have
paid or agreed to pay a stated price for a subscription for a
definite period of time, and that such newspaper has complied
with the provisions of section 493.050, Missouri Revised
Statutes, 1959. The below listed advertisement appeared in
the following issue(s):

PUBLICATION EXPIRED DATE AD CAPTION #TIMES
THE JOPLIN GLOBE 04/27/2024 LEGAL 352/SURGI 1
04/27/2024

K (W\-ﬁzm m&%— (Accounting Clerk)

Kimbra Green
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 27th day of

April, 2024

MN” >\ . G\U\* “’t‘\ Notary Public

Dian3 J. Crouch/15146002
02/21/2027

(First Published April 27, 2024)

?eugl_ C NQTICE 4
Please nofe it is the intent of Mercy ‘

Hospital Joplin to submit an application
on l\ﬁay 3, 5024 to the Missouri Heqlth
_Facilities Review Committee seeking
approval for the acqfuisi}}ton of a new ||
urgical Robot for its facility. . |
S4B (as2) ||

AMOUNT
40.69

DIANA J. CROUCH
Notary Public - Notary Seal
STATE OF MISSOURI
Jasper County
My Commission Expires: Feb. 21, 2027
Commission #15146002
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DIVIDER III

COMMUNITY NEED AND STANDARDS
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DIVIDER III. COMMUNITY NEED CRITERIA AND STANDARDS:

1. FOR NEW UNITS, ADDRESS THE MINIMUM ANNUAL
UTILIZATION STANDARD FOR THE PROPOSED GEOGRAPHIC SERVICE
AREA.

The minimal annual utilization standard specifically for robotic systems is 240 cases,
Mercy Hospital Joplin case volumes as listed under Divider II, Section 7 and are well
above the minimal utilization standard. The projected volumes will be distributed
between multiple surgical specialties at Mercy Hospital Joplin. The Mercy Ministry
initiative to move more surgeries to minimally invasive creates a substantial need for
this request as there are access issues and restraints with current equipment. The
increase in robotically trained physician recruits to serve patients also adds necessity to
this request.

2. FOR ANY NEW UNIT WHERE SPECIFIC NEED AND UTILIZATION STAND
ARDS ARE NOT LISTED, PROVIDE THE METHODOLOGY FOR
DETERMINING NEED.

Mercy has committed to provide the highest level of care and in our role as a major
referral center, Mercy invests significant time and energy into the annual planning and
budgeting process and plan development. Recommendations are reviewed and
prioritized to deem financial projects most impactful to patients. As a Ministry, a key
initiative is to expand minimally invasive surgeries to patients to provide the highest
patient satisfaction and the best patient care. This project aligns with the Ministry’s
goals and initiatives..

3. FOR ADDITIONAL UNITS, DOCUMENT COMPLIANCE WITH THE
OPTIMAL UTILIZATION STANDARD, AND IF NOT ACHIEVED, PROVIDE
DOCUMENTATION TO JUSTIFY ADDITIONAL UNIT.

Not applicable as there is no known optimal utilization standard formula.

4. FOR EVOLVING TECHNOLOGY ADDRESS THE FOLLOWING.

Not applicable. This is not considered evolving technology.
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DIVIDER IV

FINANCIAL FEASIBILITY REVIEW CRITERIA AND STANDARDS
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DIVIDER IV. FINANCIAL FEASIBILITY REVIEW CRITERIA &
STANDARDS:

1. DOCUMENT THAT SUFFICIENT FINANCING IS AVAILABLE BY
PROVIDING A LETTER FROM A FINANCIAL INSTITUTION OR
AN AUDITORS STATEMENT INDICATING THAT SUFFICIENT
FUNDS ARE AVAILABLE.

The project will be funded by existing reserve funds which is the least costly
form of financing and minimizes total project cost.

2. PROVIDE SERVICE-SPECIFIC REVENUES AND EXPENSES (FORM
MO 580-1865) PROJECTED THROUGH THREE (3) YEARS BEYOND
PROJECT COMPLETION.

See attached form.
3. DOCUMENT HOW PATIENT CHARGES WERE DERIVED.

It is the intent of Mercy Hospital Joplin to continue current charge structure
with future adjustments primarily based on inflation. Existing fee schedules
relate to resource utilization and procedural cost as generally accepted in the
acute facility market place.

Charges within projected revenues considers an adjustment for inflation with
no other significant changes applicable.

4. DOCUMENT RESPONSIVENESS TO THE NEEDS OF THE
MEDICALLY INDIGENT.

Mercy Hospital Joplin has a history of being responsive to the needs of the
medically indigent patients who present for services. Mercy Hospital Joplin
is a Sisters of Mercy sponsored organization, and as such, is dedicated to
healing and wellness for all. Our mission calls us to specifically address the
needs of the economically poor. Mercy will continue to meet the needs of all
who present for care, as resources allow.

See attached Community Benefit Summary for Mercy Hospital — Joplin.
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Ernst & Young LLP Tel: +1 314 290 1000
Suite 2600 ey.com
7676 Forsyth Boulevard

Building a better St. Louis, MO 63105
working world

Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
Mercy Health

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Mercy Health, which comprise the
consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the related consolidated statements
of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes
(collectively referred to as the “financial statements™).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Mercy Health as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the results of its operations,
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of Mercy Health and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or erTor.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Mercy Health’s
ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are
issued.

2308-4316470 1

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of Mercy Health’s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

* Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Mercy Health’s ability to continue as a going

concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal

control-related matters that we identified during the audit.
ém:t v MLL?

2308-4316470 2

September 13, 2023

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Short-term investments
Other current assets

Total current assets

Investments

Property and equipment, net

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and net assets
Current liabilities:

Mercy Health

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In Thousands)

Current maturities of long-term obligations

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and related liabilities

Accrued liabilities and other

Total current liabilities

Insurance reserves and other liabilities

Pension liabilities

Long-term obligations, less current maturities

Total liabilities

Net assets:
Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions
Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes.

2207-4071966

June 30

2023 2022
529,638 $ 766,187
830,562 847,319
133,162 131,315
46,883 46,421
198,850 131,922
1,739,095 1,923,164
3,392,083 3,366,968
3,455,079 3,362,960
895.036 886,149
9481293 $§ 9.539.241
29,558 $ 32,709
445,718 459,449
502,586 499,880
440,021 628,273
1,417,883 1,620,311
669,710 650,023
231,654 269,048
2,173,361 2,198,157
4,492,608 4,737,539
4,806,304 4,626,359
182.381 175,343
4,988,685 4,801,702
9.481.293 $ 9.539.241
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Mercy Health

Consolidated Statements of Operations

(In Thousands)

Operating revenues:
Patient service revenues
Capitation revenues
Other operating revenues

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits
Supplies and other
Medical claims expense
Interest
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment and severance
Total operating expenses

Operating gain (loss)

Nonoperating gains (losses):
Investment returns, net
Realized and unrealized gains on interest rate swaps, net
Other, net

Total nonoperating gains (losses), net

Excess (deficit) of revenues over expenses

Other changes in net assets without donor restrictions:
Pension liability adjustments
Net assets released from restrictions for property acquisitions
Other

Increase (decrease) in net assets without donor restrictions

See accompanying notes.

2207-4071966

Year Ended June 30
2023 2022
7,312,620 $ 6,741,659
237,392 227,616
468,384 500,264
8,018,396 7,469,539
4,559,367 4,329,054
2,936,005 2,674,241
102,682 93,313
75,230 67,889
314,332 310,884
18.979 7,774
8,006,595 7,483,155
11,801 (13,616)
101,582 (305,539)
16,9_37 31,300
(25,944) (11,429)
92,575 (285,668)
104,376 (299,284)
49,227 41,296
22,424 15,991
3,919 1,701
179946 § (240.296)
4
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Mercy Health

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
(In Thousands)

Year Ended June 30
2023 2022

Increase (decrease) in net assets without donor restrictions $ 179,946 $ (240,296)

Net assets with donor restrictions:

Pledges, bequests, and gifts for specific purposes 37,400 38,004
Investment returns, net 26 (3,995)
Net assets released from restrictions . (22,424) (15,991)
Other (7,965) (9,029)
Increase (decrease) in net assets without donor restrictions 7,037 8,989
Increase (decrease) in net assets 186,983 (231,307)
Net assets at beginning of year 4,801,702 5,033,009
Net assets at end of year $ 4988685 $ 4.801.702

See accompanying notes.
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Mercy Health

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In Thousands)

Operating activities
Increase (decrease) in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile (increase) decrease in net assets to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Impairment expense
Pension liability adjustments
Pledges, bequests, and gifts for specific purposes
Unrealized gain on interest rate swap
Depreciation and amortization
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Investments classified as trading
Inventories and other current assets
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities and other
Insurance reserves and other liabilities
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Investing activities

Additions to property and equipment, net
Net change in other assets

Net change in alternative investments
Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt, net of original
issue discount/premium and financing costs

Principal payments on long-term obligations

Pledges, bequests, and gifts for specific purposes

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of year

Supplemental disclosures
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash included in other assets
Restricted cash included in investments

Total cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalents

Cash paid for interest

See accompanying notes.

2207-4071966

Year Ended June 30
2023 2022
S 186,983 §$ (231,307)
11,877 -
(49,227) (41,296)
(37,400) (38,004)
(18,778) (42,837)
314,332 310,884
16,757 (93,631)
84,043 (7,732)
(68,776) (37,419)
(20,780) 132,649
(185,901) (416,657)
(19,401) (168,458)
213,729 (633,808)
(390,992) (341,503)
33,199 115,014
(137,308) 70,049
(495,101) (156,440)
374,940 —
(411,296) (37,836)
37,400 38,004
1,044 168
(280,328) (790,080)
994,153 1,784,233
$ 713825 § 994,153
$ 529,638 § 766,187
1,070 17,160
183,118 210,806
$ 713.826 $ 994,153
$ 85951 § 76.611
6
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Mercy Health

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Tables in Thousands)

June 30, 2023

1. Organization

Mercy Health (Mercy) was incorporated in September 1986 and is the sole corporate member of
various health care corporations. Mercy is sponsored by Mercy Health Ministry, a Public Juridic
Person whose board members include Sisters of Mercy and lay leaders. Prior to sponsorship by
Mercy Health Ministry, Mercy was sponsored by the Institute of the Sisters of Mercy of the

Americas, Regional Community of St. Louis, a religious order of the Roman Catholic Church.

Mercy and each of its subsidiaries listed below are incorporated as not-for-profit corporations
under the laws of the state of incorporation and are tax-exempt organizations as described in
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (the Code).

Mercy’s ministry office (headquarters) is located in St. Louis, Missouri. The Health System
(Health System) is comprised of the following corporations and their subsidiaries:

All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

Mercy Health; St. Louis, Missouri

Mercy Health Fort Smith Communities; Fort Smith, Arkansas

Mercy Health Northwest Arkansas Communities; Rogers, Arkansas

Mercy Health East Communities; St. Louis, Missouri

Mercy Health Springfield Communities; Springfield, Missouri

Mercy Health Oklahoma Communities, Inc.; Oklahoma City and Ardmore, Oklahoma

Mercy Health Southwest Missouri/Kansas Communities and Joplin, Missouri

2308-4316470
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Mercy Health

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Tables in Thousands)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Investments in highly liquid debt instruments with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased, excluding amounts classified as investments, are considered cash equivalents. Cash
equivalents are recorded at fair value on the consolidated balance sheets and exclude amounts held
for long-term investment purposes and collateral posted on interest rate swap agreements, as those
amounts are commingled with investments and other assets, respectively. The Health System
routinely invests in money market mutual funds. These funds generally invest in highly liquid U.S.
government and agency obligations. Financial instruments that potentially subject the Health
System to concentrations of credit risk include the Health System’s cash and cash equivalents. The
Health System places its cash and cash equivalents with institutions with high credit quality.
However, at certain times, such cash and cash equivalents are in excess of government-provided
insurance limits.

Inventories

Inventories, which consist principally of medical supplies and pharmaceuticals, are stated at the
lower of cost or market. Cost is determined principally using the average cost method.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost or, if donated, at fair value at the date of receipt.
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of land and
leasehold improvements, buildings, and equipment. The estimated useful lives are as follows: land
and leasehold improvements, 2 to 40 years; buildings, 3 to 80 years; and equipment, 2 to 20 years.
Property and equipment under financing lease obligations are amortized using the straight-line
method over the lease term or the estimated useful life of the leased asset, whichever period is

shorter. Such amortization is included with depreciation on the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations.

2308-4316470 8
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Mercy Health

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Tables in Thousands)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
COVID-19

On March 27, 2020, President Trump signed into law the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic
Security Act (CARES Act), which has provided economic assistance to a wide array of industries,
including health care. The Health System recognized $29.8 million and $136.1 million of Provider
Relief Funds, which are recorded in other operating revenues in fiscal years 2023 and 2022,
respectively. Mercy received other CARES Act funding in addition to the Provider Relief Funds,
which are not material.

In April 2020, the Health System requested Medicare advance payments from the Centers for
Medicare & Medicaid Services’ (CMS) Accelerated and Advance Payment Program (Program)
designed to increase cash flow to Medicare providers and suppliers impacted by COVID-19. The
Health System received $649.9 million in April 2020. CMS began to recoup these advanced
payments in April 2021 and recouped $384.6 million during the year ended June 30, 2022 and the
remaining $197.2 million recouped in the year ended June 30, 2023.

The Health System has elected to defer the deposit and payment of the employer’s share of Social
Security taxes allowed under the CARES Act. As of June 30, 2022, the Health System had
$52.6 million of remaining deferred payments included in accrued payroll and related liabilities
on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. The Health System paid the remaining
$52.6 million in fiscal year 2023.

Asset Impairment

The Health System periodically evaluates the carrying value of its long-lived assets for impairment
when indicators of impairment are identified. These evaluations are primarily based on the
estimated recoverability of the assets’ carrying value based on undiscounted cash flows.
Impairment write-downs are recognized in operating income at the time the impairment
is identified.

2308-4316470 9
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Mercy Health

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Tables in Thousands)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments in Unconsolidated Affiliates

The equity method of accounting is used for investments in unconsolidated affiliates where the
Health System does not have significant control or where ownership is 50% or less. The equity
income or loss on these investments is recorded in other operating revenues on the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations.

Goodwill

The Health System records goodwill arising from a business combination as the excess of purchase
price and related costs over the fair value of identifiable tangible and intangible assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. The Health System annually reviews the carrying value of goodwill for
impairment. In addition, a goodwill impairment assessment is performed whenever circumstances
indicate a potential impairment may exist. If such circumstances suggest that the recorded amounts
of any of these assets cannot be recovered, the carrying values of such assets are reduced to fair
value. If the carrying value of any of these assets is impaired, a charge may be incurred to results
of operations.

Net Assets

The Health System’s net assets and activities are classified into two classes, with or without donor
restrictions, based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. The general nature
of the donor restrictions is to support the Health System’s indigent care mission and health
education programs and to assist with capital projects.

Patient Service Revenues and Patient Accounts Receivable

Patient service revenues and patient accounts receivable are reported at the amount that reflects

the consideration to which the Health System expects to be entitled in exchange for providing
patient care.

2308-4316470 10
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Mercy Health

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Tables in Thousands)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Capitation Revenues and Medical Claims Expense

Mercy has entered into various risk-based contracts with certain health maintenance organizations
(HMOs). Under these arrangements, Mercy receives capitated payments based on the demographic
characteristics of covered members in exchange for agreeing to provide certain medical services
to those members. These payments are reflected as capitation revenues on the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations. Mercy recognizes medical claims expense for services
provided to members from out-of-network providers. The medical claims expense represents
claims paid, claims reported but not yet paid, and an estimate of claims incurred but not reported
(IBNR). The claims IBNR amount is estimated based upon prior experience modified for current
trends. The claims IBNR amount was $14.6 million and $17.9 million at June 30, 2023 and 2022,
respectively, and was included in accrued liabilities and other on the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets.

Services to the Community

In support of its mission, the Health System provides care to patients who personally bear a
significant financial burden relative to their health care services and are deemed to be medically
indigent. Traditional charity care includes the cost of services provided to persons who cannot
afford health care because of the financial burden of the health care services and/or who are
uninsured or underinsured. Traditional charity care also includes services for which the patient
may not participate in the charity care process but is otherwise deemed to meet the Health System’s
charity care policy.

Because the Health System does not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity
care, such amounts are not reported as patient service revenue. The cost of traditional charity care
was $121.3 million and $134.6 million in 2023 and 2022, respectively. The Health System
estimates cost of charity care using a calculated ratio of costs to charges by hospital and clinic and
applies that ratio to the relevant gross charges.

2308-4316470 48





Mercy Health

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Tables in Thousands)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Health care services to patients under government programs, such as Medicare and Medicaid, are
also considered part of the Health System’s benefit provided to the community, since a portion of
such services is reimbursed at amounts less than cost. In addition, the Health System maintains
community benefit programs designed to positively impact the health status of the communities
served. These services include various clinics and outreach programs (designed to deliver health
care services to underserved communities), medical education and research activities, and direct
cash and in-kind charitable contributions.

These community benefit programs also include the activities of Mercy Ministries of Laredo,
Mercy Caritas, Catherine’s Fund, and Mercy Family Center, which are administered by the Health
System. These programs finance charitable activities to help meet the needs of the poor and sick.

Investments

Investments include assets set aside through resolution by the Board of Directors for future
long-term purposes. In addition, investments include amounts contributed by donors with
stipulated restrictions. Investments also include amounts held by trustees under bond indenture
agreements, as well as amounts held under the terms of other trust agreements. These assets include
investments in equity securities and debt securities, which are measured at fair value. The cost of
securities sold is based on the specific-identification method. The Health System accounts for its
ownership interest in alternative investments based on the net asset value (NAV). Management
has utilized the best available information for reported alternative investment values, which in
some instances are valuations as of an interim date.

For purposes of recognizing investment returns as a component of excess (deficit) of revenues over
expenses, substantially all investments, other than alternative investments, are considered to be
trading securities. Investment returns arising from donor-restricted resources are reported as a
direct increase or decrease in net assets with donor restrictions on the accompanying consolidated
statements of changes in net assets, consistent with the donors’ restrictions. In addition, a portion
of investments is used to fund payments of professional liability claims and, as a result, the
investment returns related to the amount of investments expected to settle the professional liability
are included in other operating revenues within the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations. All other investment returns, including alternative investments, are included in

2308-4316470 12
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Mercy Health

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Tables in Thousands)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

nonoperating gains and losses on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. In
addition, cash flows from the purchases and sales of marketable securities designated as trading

are reported as a component of operating activities on the accompanying consolidated statements
of cash flows.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative financial instruments are contracts between the Health System and a third party
(counterparty) that provide for economic payments between the parties based on changes in a
defined market security or index or combination thereof. The Health System’s derivative financial
instruments are primarily interest rate swap agreements utilized as part of its debt management
process. The Health System recognizes all derivative financial instruments as either assets or
liabilities on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at fair value. The Health System does
not offset fair value amounts recognized for derivative financial instruments or fair value amounts
posted as cash collateral. The Health System does not account for any of its interest rate swap
agreements as hedges and, accordingly, realized and unrealized gains (losses) and net settlement
payments are reflected as a component of nonoperating gains and losses on the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations.

Pledges, Bequests, and Gifts for Specific Purposes

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the
promise is received. Conditional promises to give and indications of intentions to give are reported
at fair value at the date the gift is received. Gifts are recorded as an increase in net assets with
donor restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the assets.
Upon expenditure in accordance with a donor’s restrictions and when the asset is placed in service,
net assets restricted for capital acquisitions are reported as direct additions to net assets without
donor restrictions, and assets restricted for operating purposes are reported as an increase in other
operating revenues. Donor-restricted contributions for operating purposes whose restrictions are
met within the same year as received, and contributions received by donors without restrictions,
are reflected as other operating revenues on the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations.

2308-4316470 13
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Mercy Health

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Tables in Thousands)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Operating Indicator

The Health System’s operating indicator operating gain (loss) includes all revenue, gains and other
support, and expenses directly related to the health care operations during the reporting period.
The operating indicator excludes nonoperating gains and losses, pension liability adjustments, and
net assets released from restrictions for property acquisitions.

Performance Indicator

The Health System’s performance indicator, excess (deficit) of revenues over expenses, includes
all changes in net assets without donor restrictions other than pension liability adjustments, and
net assets released from restrictions for property acquisitions.

Operating and Nonoperating Gains (Losses)

The Health System’s primary mission is to meet the health care needs in its market areas by
providing general health care services to residents within communities served, including acute
inpatient, subacute inpatient, physician, outpatient, ambulatory, and home care, as well as related
general and administrative services. Activities directly associated with the furtherance of this
purpose are considered to be operating activities. Other activities that result in gains or losses
peripheral to the Health System’s primary mission are considered to be nonoperating.
Nonoperating activities include net investment returns, excluding the estimated earnings related to
the investments attributed to professional liabilities, pension liability adjustments, and net realized
and unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate swaps.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Federal Income Tax

Primarily all of the Health System entities are recognized by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS)
as exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as charitable
organizations qualifying under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3), by virtue of IRS
determination letters or inclusion in the Official Catholic Directory. The Health System completed
an analysis of its tax positions in accordance with applicable accounting guidance and determined
that no amounts were required to be recognized on the consolidated financial statements at June 30,
2023 or 2022.

3. Patient Service Revenue and Patient Receivables

Patient service revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration the Health System
expects to be paid for providing patient care. Revenue is recognized as performance obligations,
based on the nature of the services provided by the Health System, are satisfied. Performance
obligations satisfied over time relate to patients receiving inpatient acute care services from
admission to the point when services are no longer required, which is generally at the time of
discharge. Revenue for performance obligations satisfied over time is recognized based on actual
charges incurred in relation to total expected or actual charges. Outpatient services are
performance obligations satisfied at a point in time and revenue is recognized when goods or
services are provided and the Health System does not believe it is required to provide additional
goods or services. Management believes this method provides a fair depiction of the transfer of
services over the term of performance obligations based on the inputs needed to satisfy the
obligations.

The Health System has elected to apply the optional exception provided in FASB
ASC 606-10-50-14(a), because substantially all of its performance obligations relate to contracts
with a duration of less than one year. Therefore, the Health System is not required to disclose the
aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to performance obligations that are unsatisfied
or partially satisfied at the end of the reporting period. The unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied
performance obligations referred to above are primarily related to inpatient acute care services at
the end of the reporting period. The performance obligations for these contracts are generally
completed when the patients are discharged, which generally occurs within days or weeks of the
end of the reporting period.
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3. Patient Service Revenue and Patient Receivables (continued)

The Health System uses a portfolio approach to account for categories of patient contracts as a
collective group, rather than recognizing revenue on an individual contract basis. The portfolios
consist of major payor classes for inpatient revenue and outpatient revenue. Based on the historical
collection trends and other analysis, the Health System believes that revenue recognized by
utilizing the portfolio approach approximates the revenue that would have been recognized if an
individual contract approach were used.

The Health System determines the transaction price, which involves significant estimates and
judgment, based on standard charges for goods and services provided, reduced by explicit and
implicit price concessions, including contractual adjustments provided to third-party payors,
discounts provided to uninsured and underinsured patients in accordance with policy, and/or
implicit price concessions based on the historical collection experience of patient accounts. The
Health System determines the transaction price associated with services provided to patients who
have third-party payor coverage with Medicare, Medicaid, managed care programs, and other
third-party payors based on reimbursement terms per contractual agreements, discount policies,
and historical experience. Payment arrangements with those payors include prospectively
determined rates per admission or visit, reimbursed costs, discounted charges, per diem rates, and
value-based payments. Reported costs and/or services provided under certain of the arrangements
are subject to retroactive audit and adjustment. Patient service revenues (net of contractuals and
discounts) are recorded during the period the health care services are provided and are reported at
estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors, and others for services
rendered, including estimated retroactive revenue adjustments due to future audits, reviews, and
investigations. Estimates of contractual allowances under managed care health plans are based
upon the services provided, historical payment rates, and the payment terms specified in the related
contractual agreements. Revenues related to uninsured patients have discounts applied in
accordance with the Health System’s policy. Patient service revenues decreased by approximately
$35.3 million in 2023 and $28.1 million in 2022 due to revised estimates consisting primarily of
retroactive third-party adjustments for years that are subject to audits, reviews, and investigations.
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3. Patient Service Revenue and Patient Receivables (continued)

The following is a summary of the Health System’s patient service revenues by major payor
source, net of price concessions, for the years ended June 30:

2023 2022
Medicare $ 3,153,732 $§ 2,863,624
Medicaid 758,962 650,814
Managed care/other 3,328,102 3,187,078
Self-pay 71,824 40,143

$ 7,312,620 $ 6,741,659

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are extremely complex and
subject to interpretation. As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates
will change by a material amount in the near term. Noncompliance with Medicare and Medicaid
laws and regulations can make the Health System subject to significant regulatory action, including
substantial fines and penalties, as well as exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs.

The Health System provides health care services through inpatient and outpatient care facilities
located in several states. The Health System grants credit to patients in return for health care
services rendered to said patients, substantially all of whom are residents of the communities
served. The Health System does not require collateral or other security in extending credit to
patients; however, it routinely obtains assignment of (or is otherwise entitled to receive) patients’
benefits payable under their health insurance programs, plans, or policies (e.g., Medicare,
Medicaid, HMOs, and commercial insurance policies). At June 30, 2023 and 2022, approximately
41% and 43%, respectively, of net accounts receivable were collectible from governmental payors
(including Medicare and Medicaid), with approximately 49% and 50%, respectively, of net
accounts receivable collectible from commercial insurance and managed care payors. One
managed care payor represented 20% and 19% of net accounts receivable for 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

2308-4316470 54





Mercy Health

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(Tables in Thousands)

4. Financial Assets and Liquidity Resources

As of June 30, financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general
expenditure, such as operating expenses, scheduled principal payments on debt, and capital

expenditures not financed with debt, were as follows:

2023 2022

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 529,638 $ 766,187

Accounts receivable 830,562 847,319

Other current assets 198,850 131,922

Investments 3,438,966 3,413,389
Total financial assets 4,998,016 5,158,817
Less:

Cash and investments with donor restrictions (103,506) (112,975)

Pledge receivable with restrictions (42,803) (42,581)

Investments with liquidity of more than one year (920,970) (832,907)
Total financial assets available within one year 3,930,737 4,170,354
Liquidity resources:

Unused lines of credit 425,000 100,000
Total financial assets and liquidity resources available

within one year $ 4,355,737 $ 4,270,354

As part of the Health System’s investment policy, the Health System holds highly liquid
investments to enhance its ability to satisfy liquidity. To manage liquidity, the Health System
maintains general operating lines of credit that may be drawn upon as needed to manage cash

flows. Refer to Note 11 for further information.

The availability of certain amounts within the board-designated investments may change in

accordance with board policies at any time.

2308-4316470

55





Mercy Health

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(Tables in Thousands)

5. Investments

The following is a summary of investments:

Without donor restrictions
Restricted by donor or grantor
Total investments

Less short-term investments

The following is a summary of investments by classification:

Cash and cash equivalents
Equities:
Domestic equities
International equities
Fixed income:
Mutual funds
Corporate bonds
Government and agencies
Alternative investments:
Hedge funds
Private partnerships
Other
Amount due to brokers
Amounts due from brokers

Less short-term investments
Total investments

2308-4316470

June 30
2023 2022

$ 3,335,460 $ 3,300,414
103,506 112,975

3,438,966 3,413,389
(46,883) (46,421)

$ 3,392,083 $§ 3,366,968

June 30
2023 2022

$ 183,108 $ 210,806

596,499 743,104
463,075 483,021

197,251 292,581
517,100 561,913

198,824 164,526
346,154 155,918
909,752 788,536
27,959 27,821
(10,122) (33,351)
7,366 18,514

3,438966 3,413,389
(46,883) (46,421)

$ 3,392,083 $ 3,366,968
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5. Investments (continued)

The following is a summary of investment returns:

Year Ended June 30
2023 2022

Investments:

Interest and dividends $ 41,434 § 13,227

Realized (losses) gains, net (53,390) 182,986

Unrealized gains (losses), net 113,538 (501,752)
Investment returns included in nonoperating gains, net 101,582 (305,539)
Investment returns included in net assets with

donor restrictions 26 (3,995)
Investment returns included in other operating revenues 1,933 (3,670)
Total investment returns $ 103,541 $ (313,204)

Investment return is reduced by external and direct internal investment expenses.

The Health System’s investments are exposed to various kinds and levels of risk. Fixed-income
securities expose the Health System to interest rate risk, currency risk, credit risk, and liquidity
risk. As interest rates change, the value of many fixed-income securities is affected, particularly
those with fixed rates. Currency risk is the risk associated with fluctuations in foreign exchange
rates. Credit risk is the risk that the obligor of the security will not fulfill its obligations. Liquidity
risk is affected by the willingness of market participants to buy and sell given securities. Equity
securities expose the Health System to market risk, currency risk, performance risk, and liquidity
risk. Market risk is the risk associated with major movements of the equity markets, both foreign
and domestic. Currency risk as previously defined tends to be higher for emerging market equities.
Performance risk is the risk associated with a company’s operating performance. Liquidity risk as
previously defined tends to be higher for foreign equities and small capitalization equities.
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5. Investments (continued)

Certain of the Health System’s investments are made through alternative investments, primarily
private limited partnership investments (equity, debt, real asset) and absolute return (hedge) funds.
These investments provide the Health System with a proportionate share of the investment gains
and losses. The fund manager has full discretionary authority (within its given mandate) over the
investment decisions and provides the net asset valuation, typically through third-party
administrators. The hedge funds and private limited partnership funds present risks similar to those
of traditional investments, as well as some additional risks. Due to the fact that these funds are
invested through limited partnerships or other illiquid fund vehicles, pricing is infrequent and
liquidity may also be limited, in some cases, up to 24 months for hedge funds. Due to infrequent
pricing and illiquidity of underlying investments, it is common practice for private limited
partnership funds to require investors to commit to a ten-year fund term, although the distribution
of capital is likely to occur prior to the ten-year termination date. Certain hybrid limited partnership
funds may invest in liquid securities; however, the investments would be inaccessible for the term
of the structure. Terms for these hybrid vehicles could be shorter in duration, lasting up to five
years for the full investment and distribution periods. These investments may also employ
leverage, which may lead to additional risk of loss. These investments are subject to market risk,
interest rate risk, currency risk, credit risk, performance risk, and liquidity risk, as well as various
other types of risks. At June 30, 2023, the Health System has commitments to fund an additional
$760.4 million in these investments.

6. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurements and disclosures topic of the FASB ASC establishes a fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurement)
and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurement).

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy and a description of the valuation methodologies used
for instruments measured at fair value are as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of
the reporting date.
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6. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

Level 2 — Pricing inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, which are either directly
observable or can be derived or supported from observable data as of the reporting date.

Level 3 — Pricing inputs include those that are significant to the fair value of the financial asset
or financial liability and are not observable from objective sources. In evaluating the
significance of input, the Health System generally classifies assets or liabilities as Level 3
when their fair value is determined using unobservable inputs that individually, or when
aggregated with other unobservable inputs, represent more than 10% of the fair value of the
assets or liabilities. These inputs may be used with internally developed methodologies that
result in management’s best estimate of fair value.

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis were determined
using the following inputs at June 30, 2023:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Investments:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 180,352 $ - 8 - 3 180,352
Equities:
Domestic equities 470,139 - - 470,139
International equities 96,235 - - 96,235
Fixed income:
Mutual funds 197,251 - - 197,251
Corporate bonds - 271,716 - 277,716
Government and agencies 6,903 191,921 - 198,824
Other - 4,413 - 4,413
Assets at NAV:
Hedge funds 346,154
Private partmership 909,752
Commingled funds 734,584
Other 23,546
Total investments $ 3,438,966
Deferred compensation plan assets:
Equities — mutual funds $ 295,079 $ - § - $ 295,079
Collateral posted on interest rate swap
agreements $ 1,070 § - $ - $ 1,070
Liabilities
Interest rate swap agreements $ - 3 4,880 $ - $ 4,880
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6. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis were determined
using the following inputs at June 30, 2022:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Investments:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 195969 §$ - $ - 5 195,969
Equities:
Domestic equities 549,057 - - 549,057
International equities 147,401 - - 147,401
Fixed income:
Mutual funds 292,581 - - 292,581
Corporate bonds - 374,080 - 374,080
Government and agencies 13,758 150,768 - 164,526
Other - 3,947 - 3,947
Assets at NAV:
Hedge funds 155,918
Private partnership 788,536
Commingled funds 717,500
Other 23.874
Total investments $ 3.413.389
Deferred compensation plan assets:
Equities — mutual funds $ 259,047 $ - $ - 3 259,047
Collateral posted on interest rate swap
agreements $ 17,160 § - - 8 17,160
Liabilities
Interest rate swap agreements $ - 3 23,767 $ - § 23,767

Deferred compensation plan assets and collateral posted on interest rate swaps agreements are
reported in other assets, and interest rate swaps (liabilities) are reported in insurance reserves and
other liabilities on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
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6. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

The following is a description of the Health System’s valuation methodologies for assets and
liabilities measured at fair value. Fair value for Level | is based upon quoted market prices.
The fair value of certain Level 2 securities was determined using multiple price types of bid/offer,
last traded, settlement, evaluated, and the official primary exchange close-time pricing, provided
by third-party pricing services if quoted market prices were not available. The quality of the prices
received is evaluated through price comparisons and tolerance level checks. These Level 2
investments include corporate bonds, treasuries, and agencies. The fair values of the interest rate
swap contracts, also Level 2 measurements, are determined based on the present value of expected
future cash flows using discount rates appropriate with the risks involved. The valuations reflect a
credit spread adjustment to the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) discount curve in order
to reflect nonperformance risk.

The credit spread adjustment is derived from the Health System’s and other comparable rated
entities’ bonds priced in the market and adjusted with a gross-up of the tax-exempt spread to a
taxable equivalent spread for the Health System and counterparty bond trading levels (or credit
default swap spreads).

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, pledges receivable, and
current liabilities are reasonable estimates of their fair values due to the short-term nature of these
financial instruments. The fair value of the Health System’s fixed rate bonds is based on quoted
market prices for the same or similar issues and approximates $1.5 billion and $1.5 billion as of
June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, which is a Level 2 measurement. The carrying amount
approximates fair value for all other long-term debt, which is variable rate, and excludes the impact
of third-party credit enhancements; this is a Level 2 measurement.

Due to the volatility of the financial markets, there is a reasonable possibility of changes in fair
value and additional gains and losses in the near term subsequent to June 30, 2023.
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7. Property and Equipment

The following is a summary of property and equipment:

June 30
2023 2022
Land, land improvements, and leasehold
improvements $ 369,061 $ 370,258
Buildings 4,778,777 4,504,459
Equipment 3,093,926 2,979,319
Construction-in-progress 238,598 295,371
8,480,362 8,149,407
Less accumulated depreciation (5,025,283) (4,786,447)
Property and equipment, net $ 3,455,079 $ 3,362,960

At June 30, 2023, construction, capital, and software-related contracts and commitments exist for
capital improvements at certain of the Health System’s facilities. The remaining commitment on
these contracts at June 30, 2023 was approximately $201.2 million. During the years ended
June 30, 2023 and 2022, interest of $8.5 million and $4.9 million, respectively, was capitalized.
During the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Health System recorded impairment of
$11.9 million and $0, respectively.

8. Other Assets

The following is a summary of other assets:

June 30
2023 2022
Right-of-use assets $ 210,025 $ 226,152
Deferred compensation plan assets 295,079 259,047
Goodwill 195,609 191,801
Investment in unconsolidated affiliates 118,462 120,827
Swap collateral 1,070 17,160
Land held for future development 22,130 22,946
Other 52,661 48,216

$ 895,036 $§ 886,149
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8. Other Assets (continued)

The following is a summary of accrued liabilities and other:

June 30
2023 2022
Medicare advance payments $ - $ 197,248
Operating lease liabilities 50,892 61,824
Estimated amounts due to third-party payors 172,976 146,364
Accrued other expenses 216,153 222,837

$ 440,021 § 628,273

9. Liability Programs

The Health System administers a liability program to provide for general and professional liability
risks within certain limits. Health care professional liabilities in excess of self-insured limits are
insured on a claims-made basis subject to an annual maximum of $25.0 million over the self-
insured retention of $10.0 million, after which the Health System would again be responsible. The
recorded liabilities are based upon actuarial estimates of reported claims and IBNR claims using
historical claim experience and other relevant industry and hospital-specific factors and trends,
discounted at an interest rate of 3.00% for 2023 and 2022.

The discounted general and professional liability was $184.0 million and $180.0 million at
June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, which is included in accrued liabilities and other and
insurance reserves and other liabilities on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. In
addition, at June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Health System recorded net insurance receivables of
$4.9 million and $4.2 million, respectively, which are included in other assets on the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
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10. Employee Retirement Plans

Defined Contribution Plans

The Health System retirement benefits are provided through 401(k) and 403(b) plans covering all
eligible employees. All contributions to the plan are subject to IRS limitations on contributions
and includable compensation. There are three primary types of contributions to these plans:
employee deferrals, employer service-based contributions, and employer matching contributions.

Benefits for employer service-based contributions are determined as a percentage of a participant’s
salary and based on his or her years of service for certain entities. Benefits for employer matching
contributions are determined as a percentage of an eligible participant’s annual deferrals. These
employer contributions are funded annually and become fully vested over three years of vesting
service. For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the total expenses incurred related to these
defined contribution plans were $146.6 million and $135.6 million, respectively.

Defined Benefit Plans

The Health System has frozen defined benefit retirement plans. The plans were designed to provide
retirement benefits to substantially all coworkers. The plans were cash balance-type formula. The
cash balance formula provided an annual pay credit, based on employee compensation and years
of service, and an annual 5% interest credit based on the U.S. Treasury bill rates. Coworkers with
benefits earned under the cash balance formula continue to earn interest credits each year. The
interest credit continues to be based on the U.S. Treasury bill rates. The plans are funded consistent
with actuarial funding recommendations and the funding policy.

The Health System has frozen nonqualified defined benefit retirement plans that provide
retirement income in excess of the limitations on benefits imposed by IRS limitations to certain
key executives.
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10. Employee Retirement Plans (continued)

The following table sets forth the frozen defined benefit retirement plans’ benefit obligation, fair
value of plan assets, and funded status at the measurement date:

June 30
2023 2022

Accumulated benefit obligation $ 599,700 $§ 648,513

Changes in projected benefit obligation:

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 648513 § 795,431
Interest cost 26,162 13,444
Actuarial gain (20,468) (100,823)
Benefits paid (54,507) (59,539)

Projected benefit obligation at end of year

599,700 648,513

Changes in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year

375,693 484,860
Actual return on plan assets 29,073 (65,306)
Employer contributions 14,370 15,678
Benefits paid (54,507) (59,539)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 364,629 375,693
Funded status

$ (235,071) $ (272,820)

Amounts recognized on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at June 30 consist of the
following:

2023 2022

Accrued liabilities and other $ (B417) $ (3,772)
Pension liabilities (231,654) (269,048)
$ (235,071 § (272,820)

No plan assets are expected to be returned to the Health System during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2023.
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10. Employee Retirement Plans (continued)

Included in net assets without donor restrictions are the following amounts that have not yet been
recognized in net periodic pension cost:

Year Ended June 30
2023 2022
Unrecognized actuarial gain $ (272,416) $ (322,721)
Prior service cost 7,096 8,174

$ (265320) § (314,547)

Changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in net assets without donor restrictions
include the following:

Year Ended June 30
2023 2022
Current year actuarial gain $ 25901 $ 10,554
Amortization of actuarial loss 7,185 10,551
Settlement reduction of net actuarial loss 17,219 21,269
Amortization of prior service costs (1,078) (1,078)

$ 49,227 § 41,296

The estimated net actuarial loss included in net assets without donor restrictions and expected to
be recognized in net periodic pension cost during the year ending June 30, 2023 is $6.9 million.
The impact of the change in discount rate on the projected benefit obligation of the plans was a
decrease of approximately $21.5 million and $114.7 million for the years ended June 30,2023 and
2022, respectively.
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10. Employee Retirement Plans (continued)

The following is a summary of the components of net periodic pension cost:

Year Ended June 30
2023 2022
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation $ 26,162 $ 13,444
Expected return on plan assets (23,641) (24,963)
Amortization of prior service costs (1,078) (1,078)
Amortization of unrecognized actuarial loss 7,185 10,551
Settlement/curtailment 17,219 21,269
Net periodic pension cost S 25,847 § 19,223

The components of net periodic pension cost are included in the line item “other, net” on the
consolidated statements of operations.

Weighted average assumptions used to determine the plans’ projected benefit obligation and net
periodic pension cost are as follows:

Projected Benefit Obligation  Net Periodic Pension Cost
2023 2022 2023 2022

Discount rates 5.08%-5.09% 4.61%-4.63% 4.25%4.28% 1.76%1.84%

Expected long-term
return on plan assets  6.50%—6.50% 6.10%—6.10% 6.10%—6.10% 5.90%—5.90%
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10. Employee Retirement Plans (continued)

The plans’ weighted average asset allocations and policy allocation range, by asset category, are
as follows:

Policy Allocation  Plan Assets at June 30

Asset Category Range 2023 2022
Equity securities 43%-53% 47% 48%
Debt securities 33-43 36 37
Real assets 0-10 - 8
Absolute returns and hedge funds 3-13 13 3
Cash 0-10 4 4
Total 100% 100%

The Health System was outside of these policy allocations for a short period during 2021 with the
proper approval. The plans’ assets measured at fair value were determined using the following
inputs at June 30, 2023:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 15,523 §$ - 8§ - $ 15,523
Equity securities:

Domestic equities 113,107 - - 113,107

International equities 2,558 - - 2,558
Fixed income:

Corporate bonds — 100,143 - 100,143

Government and agencies - 30,539 - 30,539
Other - - 2,870 2,870
Assets at NAV:

Commingled funds 99,687

$ 364,427
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10. Employee Retirement Plans (continued)

The plans’ assets measured at fair value were determined using the following inputs at June 30,
2022:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents = $ 23,060 $ - $ -3 23,060
Equity securities:

Domestic equities 98,394 - - 98,394

International equities 10,355 - - 10,355
Fixed income:

Mutual funds 70,822 - - 70,822

Corporate bonds - 38.268 - 38,268

Government and agencies - 22,003 — 22,003
Other - - 2,824 2,824
Assets at NAV:

Commingled funds 109,967

$ 375,693

Fair value methodologies for Level 1 and Level 2 assets are consistent with the inputs described
in Note 6.

Management opted to use the NAV per share, or its equivalent, as a practical expedient for fair
value of the plans’ interest commingled funds. Valuations provided by the respective fund’s
management include variables such as the financial performance of underlying investments, recent
sales prices of underlying investments, and other pertinent information. In addition, actual market
exchanges at period-end provide additional observable market inputs of the exit price. The
majority of these funds have restrictions on the timing of withdrawals, which may reduce liquidity,
in some cases for up to 24 months in the case of hedge funds and up to 10 years for private limited
partnership funds.
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10. Employee Retirement Plans (continued)

The plans retain outside consultants to support the overall asset allocation and manager selection
process. The performance of all managers is reviewed to test that market performance has been
calculated accurately, to monitor performance vs. peers and benchmarks, and to evaluate portfolio
structure considering current and future needs based on economic forecasts and actuarial
projections. Mercy believes that a diversified portfolio will limit the degree of risk to the plans and
stabilize the long-term results. The plans’ diversified blend of marketable securities also takes into
consideration the cash flow requirements of the plans to help ensure the ability to meet the monthly
payout of benefits required. Projected rates of return for each asset category were selected after
analyzing historical experience and future expectations of the returns and volatility for assets of
that category.

The Health System expects to contribute at least $12.0 million to the plans during fiscal 2024.

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, are expected to be paid by
the plans:

Amount
Year ending June 30:

2024 $ 61,400
2025 62,000
2026 60,300
2027 57,300
2028 52,300
2029 through 2033 226,800

$ 520,100
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11. Long-Term Obligations

The following is a summary of long-term obligations:

June 30
2023 2022

Revenue bonds, fixed interest rates of 2.20%—5.00%

due through 2053 $ 1,542,230 $ 1,554,120
Revenue bonds, variable interest rates with weighted

average interest rates of 3.82% and 0.71% in fiscal 2023

and 2022, respectively, due through June 2053 373,440 374,940
Financing lease obligations 241,242 251,747
Other mortgage notes and notes 2,412 2,556

2,159,324 2,183,363

Less current maturities of long-term obligations (29,558) (32,709)
Add unamortized debt issuance costs and debt

premiums, net 43,595 47,503
Long-term obligations, less current maturities $ 2,173,361 $§ 2,198,157

Certain of Mercy’s subsidiaries have executed a commitment agreement governing certain
borrowing arrangements under the Mercy Master Trust Indenture and related agreements
(Financing Agreements). While only the revenues of Mercy collateralize the outstanding
borrowings of the Health System, each of these subsidiaries has committed to transfer such funds
to Mercy to pay the amounts due on borrowings when they come due. The Financing Agreements
contain certain restrictive covenants, including a debt service coverage ratio. At June 30, 2023,
Mercy was in compliance with all covenants.

Tax-exempt revenue bonds have been issued by various issuing authorities, the proceeds of which
were used by Mercy primarily to finance capital projects and to refinance existing indebtedness of
certain subsidiaries.
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11. Long-Term Obligations (continued)

In October 2020, $378.6 million of fixed rate, tax-exempt health facility revenue bonds were
issued by the Health and Educational Facilities Authority of the State of Missouri on behalf of
Mercy under the Master Trust Indenture. The proceeds were used to reimburse Mercy for project
costs and to pay certain costs related to issuance. The bonds have various maturities between
June 1, 2050 and June 1, 2053. Coupon rates were set at 3.00% and 4.00%, with yields to maturity
ranging from 3.05% to 3.47%. Most of the bonds were sold to institutional investors. The net
premium paid to the Health System totaled $22.7 million. Issuance costs totaled $1.3 million.

In June 2021, $76.4 million of variable rate, tax-exempt health facility revenue bonds were issued
by the Health and Educational Facilities Authority of the State of Missouri on behalf of Mercy
under the Master Trust Indenture. The proceeds were used to refinance the Series 2017AB bonds.
The bonds were directly purchased by one bank and have a final maturity of 2053. Interest is paid
monthly at a borrowing rate based on a percentage of one-month LIBOR plus an applicable spread.
The bonds include mandatory puts by the purchasing bank in 2026. Mercy may elect to renegotiate
with the initial purchasers, remarket, or redeem the bonds at any time. Other notes payable,
mortgage notes payable, and financing lease obligations are secured by certain property and
equipment of the specific borrowers.

In August 2022, $374.9 million of variable rate, tax-exempt health facility revenue bonds were
issued by the Health and Educational Facilities Authority of the State of Missouri on behalf of
Mercy under the Master Trust Indenture. The proceeds were used to refinance the Series 2014BC
and Series 2021AB bonds.

The bonds were directly purchased by two banks. No change was made to the principal amount or
original maturity dates scheduled between June 1, 2023 and February 1, 2053. Mandatory put dates
by the purchasing banks originally scheduled between June 2023 and June 2026 were extended to
August 2029 to August 2032. Interest paid monthly reflects a borrowing rate based on an adjusted
percentage of one-month term Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) plus an adjusted

applicable spread. Mercy may elect to renegotiate with the initial purchasers or remarket or redeem
the bonds.
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11. Long-Term Obligations (continued)

Aggregate maturities of long-term obligations as scheduled at June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Year ending June 30:
2024 $ 29,558
2025 46,147
2026 46,078
2027 46,193
2028 46,899
Thereafter 1,944,449

$ 2,159,324

The Health System has a total of $425.0 million of unused lines of credit with four banks, all of
which terminate in November 2025. During 2023 and 2022, the Health System had no borrowings
against the lines of credit. There were no borrowings outstanding under these lines of credit as of
June 30, 2023.

12. Derivatives

The Health System has interest-rate-related derivative instruments to manage its interest rate
exposure on its variable rate debt instruments and does not enter into derivative instruments for
any purpose other than risk management. Interest rate swap contracts between the Health System
and a third party (counterparty) provide for the periodic exchange of payments between the parties
based on changes in a defined index and a fixed rate. These agreements expose the Health System
to market risk and credit risk. Credit risk is the risk that contractual obligations of the
counterparties will not be fulfilled. Concentrations of credit risk relate to groups of counterparties
that have similar economic or industry characteristics that would cause their ability to meet
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic or other conditions.
Counterparty credit risk is managed by requiring high credit standards for the Health System’s
counterparties. The Health System will enter into transactions where the counterparty rating is high
enough to maintain the rating on Health System bonds. The interest rate swap contracts contain
collateral provisions applicable to both parties to mitigate credit risk. As of June 30, 2023 and
2022, Mercy had collateral posted of $1.07 million and $17.2 million, respectively. The Health
System does not anticipate nonperformance by its counterparties. Market risk is the adverse effect
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12. Derivatives (continued)

on the value of a financial instrument that results from a change in interest rates. The market risk
associated with interest rate changes is managed by establishing and monitoring parameters that
limit the types and degree of market risk that may be undertaken. Management also mitigates risk
through periodic reviews of the Health System’s derivative positions in the context of its blended
cost of capital.

The following is a summary of the outstanding positions under these interest rate swap agreements:

Interest Rate  Expiration Health System  Health System Notional Value June 30

Swap Type Date Pays Receives 2023 2022
70% of one-
Fixed payor June 2, 2031 3.36%-3.75%  month LIBOR $ 252,200 $ 252,200
70% of one-
Fixed payor June 2,2031 3.85% month LIBOR 50,000 50,000
67% of one-
Fixed payor  February 1, 2043 1.847% month LIBOR 73,440 74,940

The fair value of derivative instruments is as follows:

Derivatives Not Designated Consolidated Balance June 30
as Hedging Instruments Sheet Location 2023 2022
Collateral posted on interest rate
swap agreements Other assets $ 1070 $ 17,160
Interest rate swap agreements Other liabilities 4,880 23,767

The effects of derivative instruments on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations
for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 are reflected in realized and unrealized gains (losses)
on interest rate swaps on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

13. Leases

The Health System leases certain health care equipment, vehicles, and real property. Most leases
include options to renew, index and non-index escalation clauses, and options to purchase the
leased property, all of which are factored into the determination of lease payments when
appropriate.
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13. Leases (continued)

For leases with a term greater than 12 months, the Health System records the related right-of-use
assets and liabilities at the present value of lease payments over the term of the lease. Lease
payments are discounted using a municipal taxable yield curve utilizing AA ratings. The Health
System separates lease and non-lease components for real property. For all other classes of assets,
the Health System has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components.

The Health System elected not to apply the recognition requirements of ASC 842 to short-term
leases. The Health System recognizes short-term lease payments in excess (deficit) of revenues
over expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term and variable lease payments in the period
in which the obligation for those payments is incurred. The Health System also elected the package
of transition provisions available that allowed carryforward of the historical assessment of:
(1) whether contracts are or contain leases, (2) lease classification, and (3) initial direct costs.

Operating and finance lease right-of-use assets and lease liabilities as of June 30 were as follows:

2023 2022

Operating leases
Right-of-use assets:

Other assets $ 210,025 $ 226,152
Lease liabilities:

Other current liabilities $ 50,892 $ 61,824

Insurance reserves and other liabilities 175,687 169,534
Total operating lease liabilities $ 226,579 $ 231,358
Finance leases
Right-of-use assets:

Property and equipment, net $ 232,043 § 240,205
Lease liabilities:

Current maturities of long-term obligations S 21,054 $ 18,945

Long-term obligations, less current maturities 220,188 232,802
Total finance lease liabilities $ 241,242 § 251,747
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13. Leases (continued)

The amounts relating to the Health System’s lease expense for the years ended June 30 are as
follows:

Lease Type Classification 2023 2022
Operating lease costs Supplies and other $ 70,119 $ 75,827
Short-term lease costs Supplies and other 448 521
Financing lease interest Interest 7,859 8,205
Financing lease Depreciation and

amortization amortization 19,507 21,188
Variable lease costs Supplies and other 6,267 5,718
Total lease costs $ 104200 $ 111,459

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities for the years ended June 30
is as follows:

2023 2022
Operating cash flows for operating leases $ 133975 § 144,502
Operating cash flows for finance leases 7,859 8,205
Financing cash flows for finance leases 19,830 19,712
Total $ 161,664 § 172,419

Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new leases obligations for the years ended June 30
are as follows:

2023 2022
Operating leases $ 70,053 $ 34,001
Finance leases 8,409 1,467
Total $ 78,462 $ 35,468
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13. Leases (continued)

The aggregate future lease payments for operating and finance leases as of June 30, 2023 were as
follows:

Operating Finance
2024 $ 57,182 § 28,509
2025 42,193 25,030
2026 27,352 16,162
2027 22,345 15,297
2028 18,073 14,039
Thereafter 88,879 213,517
Total lease payments 256,024 312,554
Less interest (29,445) (71,312)
Lease liabilities $ 226579 $§ 241,242

Average lease terms and discount rates at June 30 were as follows:

2023 2022
Weighted average remaining lease term (years):
Operating leases 7.57 6.62
Finance leases 15.65 16.35
Weighted average discount rate:
Operating leases 2.99% 2.44%
Finance leases 5.85 6.41

14. Functional Classification of Expenses

The Health System provides general health care services to residents within communities served,
including acute inpatient, subacute inpatient, outpatient, ambulatory, long term, and home care.
Administrative services include administration, finance and accounting, integrated marketing,
human resources, and other functions. Expenses are allocated to health care services or
administrative services based on the functional department for which they are incurred.
Department expenses may include various allocations of costs based on direct assignment,
expenses, or other methods.
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14. Functional Classification of Expenses (continued)

Expenses by functional classification for the years ended June 30 consist of the following:

2023
Health Care General and
Services  Administration Total

Salaries and benefits $ 4,403,027 $ 156,340 4,559,367
Supplies and other 2,819,719 116,286 2,936,005
Medical claims expense 102,682 - 102,682
Interest 7,693 67,537 75,230
Depreciation and amortization 309,533 4,799 314,332
Impairment and severance - 18,979 18,979

$ 7,642,654 S 363,941 8,006,595

2022
Health Care General and
Services  Administration Total

Salaries and benefits $ 4,190,737 $ 138,317 4,329,054
Supplies and other 2,566,363 107,878 2,674,241
Medical claims expense 93,313 - 93,313
Interest 7,874 60,015 67,889
Depreciation and amortization 305,139 5,745 310,884
Impairment and severance 57 7,717 7,774

$ 7,163,483 $ 319,672 7,483,155
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15. Commitments and Contingencies
Regulatory Compliance

The U.S. Department of Justice and other federal agencies are increasing resources dedicated to
regulatory investigations and compliance audits of health care providers. The Health System is not
exempt from these regulatory efforts and has received correspondence from federal agencies with
regard to such initiatives. In consultation with legal counsel, management estimates these matters
will be resolved without a material adverse effect on the Health System’s consolidated financial
position or results of operations.

Litigation

The Health System is involved in litigation arising in the normal course of business. After
consultation with legal counsel, it is management’s opinion that these matters will be resolved
without a material adverse effect on the Health System’s consolidated financial position or results
of operations.

16. Subsequent Events

The Health System evaluated events and transactions occurring subsequent to June 30, 2023
through September 13, 2023, the date the accompanying consolidated financial statements were
issued.

On August 1, 2023, Mercy entered into a definitive agreement with SoutheastHEALTH System,
Inc. in Cape Girardeau, Missouri to become a member of our Health System. SoutheastHEALTH
includes two hospitals: Southeast Hospital in Cape Girardeau and Southeast Health Center of
Stoddard County in Dexter. This is currently in the diligence phase and remains contingent upon
and subject to various governmental and regulatory approvals, as well as other third-party
consents.
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Certificate of Need Program

SERVICE-SPECIFIC REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Project Title: Joplin- Davinci Project #: 6100-HS

Historical Financial Data for Latest Three Full Years plus
Projections Through Three Full Years Beyond Project Completion

Use an individual form ft?r each qﬁ‘ected service wit}.1 a Year
Sl n the yeare i the appropriate blanes. | P 2021 2022 2023
Amount of Utilization:* | 321 | 365| | 457|
Revenue:
Average Charge** $35,95¢ $35,481 $34,42¢
Gross Revenue $11,542,83 $12,950,39: $15,731,76!
Revenue Deductions 7,733,70: 8,676,76: 10,540,28!
Operating Revenue 3,809,13° 4,273,63( 5,191,48!
Other Revenue 0 0 0
TOTAL REVENUE $3,809,13 $4,273,63! $5,191,48:
Expenses:
Direct Expenses
Salaries 1,282,04( 1,219,47 1,564,26:
Fees 0 0
Supplies 782,27¢ 751,68’ 1,114,65(
Other 1,743,24- 1,661,98¢ 2,130,24¢
TOTAL DIRECT $3,807,56. $3,633,15( $4,809,16!
Indirect Expenses
Depreciation 260,71« 260,71 260,71
Interest*** 0
Rent/Lease 0 0 0
Overhead**** 1,100,84¢ 1,100,84¢ . 1,197,27°
TOTAL INDIRECT $1,361,56: $1,361,56. $1,457,99:
TOTAL EXPENSES $5,169,12! $4,994,71. $6,267,15:
NET INCOME (LOSS): -$1,359,98: -$721,08: -$1,075,66!

*Utilization will be measured in “patient days” for licensed beds, “procedures” for equipment,

or other appropriate units of measure specific to the service affected.

**Indicate how the average charge/procedure was calculated.
***Only on long term debt, not construction.

****Indicate how overhead was calculated.
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Certificate of Need Program

SERVICE-SPECIFIC REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Project Title: JOplin daVinci Project #: 6100-HS

Historical Financial Data for Latest Three Full Years plus
Projections Through Three Full Years Beyond Project Completion

Use an individual form for each affected service with a Year
i by T T entir riod,
et il m the years i he approprate blanks. L2026 2027 2028

Amount of Utilization:* [ 20| | 97| | 1,015

Revenue:

Average Charge** $39,843 $41,038 842,269

Gross Revenue $36,655,302 $39,683,746 $42,903,035

Revenue Deductions 24,559,052 25,295,824 26,054,699

Operating Revenue 12.096.250 14,387,922 16,848,336

Other Revenue 0 0 S 0

TOTAL REVENUE $12,096,250 $14,387,922 $16,848,336

Expenses:

Direct Expenses

Salaries 2,617,868 2,670,225 2,723,630

Fees 0 0

Supplies 1,826,766 1,900,021 1,938,022

Other 4,410,704 4,498,918 4,588,896
TOTAL DIRECT $8,855,337 $9,069,164 $9,250,548

Indirect Expenses

Depreciation 567,857 567,857 567,857

Interest*** 0 0 0

Rent/Lease 0 0 0

Overhead**** 2,717,717 2,913,688 3,119,483
TOTAL INDIRECT $3,285,574 $3,481,545 $3,687,340
TOTAL EXPENSES $12,140,911 $12,550,709 $12,937,888

NET INCOME (LOSS) -$44,661 $1,837,213 $3,910,449

*Utilization will be measured in “patient days” for licensed beds, “procedures” for equipment,

or other appropriate units of measure specific to the service affected.

**Indicate how the average charge/procedure was calculated.
***Only on long term debt, not construction.

****Indicate how overhead was calculated.
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Fiscal Year 2023 | Quarter 4 YTD: July 1, 2022 — June 30, 2023

Mercy Joplin Region Community Benefit Report

What is Community Benefit?

Community Benefit consists of programs and activities
designed to increase access to healthcare and improve
the overall health of the community. Financial
Assistance, Medicaid, and Outreach services are
examples of Community Benefit.

Why is Community Benefit Important at Mercy?

The Catholic Mission Imperative: Catholic Healthcare is
aresponse to the health needs of those experiencing
poverty as well as other persons that have been
economically marginalized. Mission driven
organizations, such as Mercy, provide community
benefit because they are committed to promoting and
defending human dignity, caring for persons
experiencing poverty and populations that have been
marginalized, promoting the common good, and
ensuring the effective stewardship of charitable
resources.

The Accountability Imperative: Reporting community
benefit is not boastful, like previously thought, but a

duty because sponsoring organizations want to know
the tradition of serving those experiencing poverty and
the response to community need is being continued.
Board members, volunteers, and co-workers want to
know they are part of an important community service,
and local, state, and federal governments know the
organization deserves preferential tax status.

The Legal Imperative: Since 2008, tax exempt hospitals
have been required to file an IRS Form 990, Schedule H,
to report their community benefit activities and other
information related to tax exemption.

Mercy Joplin includes community benefit reporting
for Mercy Hospital Joplin, MO; Mercy Hospital
Carthage, MO; Mercy Hospital Columbus, KS; and
Mercy Specialty Hospital of SE Kansas, Galena, KS.

Mercyr

Total Community Benefit
$17,213,906.00

Charity Care

Includes the actual cost of providing free or
discounted care to persons who cannot afford to
pay and who are not eligible for public programs.
Charity care does not include bad debt.

Benefit: $7,971,947.00

Community Outreach Services

Includes activities carried out to improve
community health and services that are
subsidized because they are needed in the
community. Examples: education, support
groups, health screenings, and immunizations.
Benefit: $4,680.00

Health Professions Education

Education and Research

Includes the cost of providing clinical placement
for physicians, nurses, and other health
professionals plus the costs of the nursing
anesthesia, EMS, and radiology schools.
Benefit: $770,314.00

Cash, In-Kind Donations, Workforce
Enhancement and Fundraising

Includes cash, in-kind donations, fundraising
costs, food & supplies to shelters, use of Mercy
rooms and facilities, donated office space and
recruitment of health professionals in medically
underserved areas.

Benefit: $0.00

Medicaid Subsidies

Includes the actual unpaid cost of providing care
to Medicaid patients and represents the shortfall
between cost of care and the payments received
by the government.

Benefit: $8,464,643.00
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da Vinci System Utilization Rates - Mercy
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. - Certificate of Need Program

Tl
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AL NEW OR ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT APPLICATION

— Applicant’s Completeness Checklist and Table of Contents

Project Name: Mercy

Hospital Joplin Project No:6100-HS

Project Description; add second da Vnci Xi System

Done Page N/A

Description

Divider I. Application Summary:
V.3 v 1. Applicant Identification and Certification (Form MO 580-1861)
v 45 4 2. Representative Registration (From MO 580-1869)
v '5 v 3. Proposed Project Budget (Form MO 580-1863) and detail sheet with documentation of costs.
Divider II. Proposal Description:
v 61215 v 1. Provide a complete detailed project description and include equipment bid quotes.
v 8 2. Provide a timeline of events for the project, from CON issuance through project completion.
v 8.19 3. Provide a legible city or county map showing the exact location of the project.
v 9,16-18 4. Define the community to be served and provide the geographic service area for the equipment.
v 9 5. Provide other statistics to document the size and validity of any user-defined geographic service area.
v 10 6. Identify specific community problems or unmet needs the proposal would address.
v 10 7. Provide the historical utilization for each of the past three years and utilization projections through the
first three (3) FULL years of operation of the new equipment.
v 10 8. Provide the methods and assumptions used to project utilization.
" 9. Document that consumer needs and preferences have been included in planning this project and describe

v 11,2025 v 10.
v 11,3031 v 11.

v 11,2629 v 10,

how consumers had an opportunity to provide input.

Provide copies of any petitions, letters of support or opposition received.

Document that providers of similar health services in the proposed service area have been notified of the
application by a public notice in the local newspaper.

Document that providers of all affected facilities in the proposed service area were addressed letters
regarding the application.

Divider III. Service Specific Criteria and Standards:

v 33.84 v 1.
v 33, v 2.
v 33 v 3
v 33 v 4.
v 33 v

v 33 v

v 33 v

v 33 v

v 33 v

v 33

v 33

Divider IV.

v 35-80 v 1.
v/ 8182 v 2.
v 35 v 3
v 83 v 4.

For new units, address the minimum annual utilization standard for the proposed geographic service area.

For any new unit where specific utilization standards are not listed, provide documentation to justify the

new unit.

. For additional units, document compliance with the optimal utilization standard, and if not achieved,

provide documentation to justify the additional unit.

For evolving technology address the following:

- Medical effects as described and documented in published scientific literature;

- The degree to which the objectives of the technology have been met in practice;

- Any side effects, contraindications or environmental exposures;

- The relationships, if any, to existing preventive, diagnostic, therapeutic or management technologies and
the effects on the existing technologies;

- Food and Drug Administration approval;

- The need methodology used by this proposal in order to assess efficacy and cost impact of the proposal;

- The degree of partnership, if any, with other institutions for joint use and financing.

Financial Feasibility Review Criteria and Standards:

Document that sufficient financing is available by providing a letter from a financial institution or an
auditor's statement indicating that sufficient funds are available.

Provide Service-Specific Revenues and Expenses (Form MO 580-1865) projected through three (3) FULL
years beyond project completion.

. Document how patient charges are derived.

Document responsiveness to the needs of the medically indigent.

MO 580-2503 (11/22)




= // Certificate of Need Program

“7_{:’ REPRESENTATIVE REGISTRATION

(A registration form must be completed for each project presented.)

Project Naine

Mercy Hospital Joplin - Add Second da Vinci Xi System

Number

6100 HS

(Please type or print legibly.)

Name of Representative

Michael Herr

Title

COO - Mercy Hospital Joplin

Firm/Corporation/Association of Representative (may be different from below, e.g., law firm, consultant, other)

Mercy Hospital Joplin

Telephone Number

417-556-2444

Address (Street/City/State/Zip Code)

100 Mercy Way / Joplin / MO / 64804

Who'’s interests are being represented?

(If more than one, submit a separate Representative Registration Form for each.)

Name of Individual /Agency/Corporation/Organization being Represented

Telephone Number

Address (Street/City/State/Zip Code})

Check one. Do you: Relationship to Project:
[4 Support [] None
[l Oppose ¥ Employee
[l Neutral | Legal Counsel
L] Consultant
.| Lobbyist
Other Information: _| Other (explain):

I attest that to the best of my belief and knowledge the testimony and information presented by
me is truthful, represents factual information, and is in compliance with §197.326.1 RSMo
which says: Any person who is paid either as part of his normal employment or as a lobbyist to
support or oppose any project before the health facilities review committee shall register as a
lobbyist pursuant to chapter 105 RSMo, and shall also register with the staff of the health
facilities review committee for every project in which such person has an interest and indicate
whether such person supports or opposes the named project. The registration shall also include
the names and addresses of any person, firm, corporation or association that the person
registering represents in relation to the named project. Any person violating the provisions of this
su se/:tzon shall be subject to the penalties specified in § 105.478, RSMo.

OT,, i
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DIVIDER II

PROPOSAL DESCRIPTION



DIVIDER II. PROPOSAL DESCRIPTION:

1. PROVIDE A COMPLETE DETAILED PROJECT DESCRIPTION
AND INCLUDE EQUIPMENT BID QUOTES.

Project includes acquisition of a second daVinci Xi Robotic System to support
our robotic platform in surgical and cancer care at Mercy Joplin. This
equipment acquisition will also serve as a bridge in accomplishing increased
access of current robotic equipment to support robotic surgical care in the
specialties of General Surgery, OB/GYN Surgery, Urological Surgery and
Cardiothoracic Surgery. The cost for acquisition of all associated medical
equipment is $2,150,750 and total cost for the proposed acquisition is
$2,150,750.

New equipment is needed to support the Ministry’s initiative of expanding
minimally invasive surgery for patients. Minimally invasive surgery reduces
length of stay, improves patient outcomes and recovery, and reduces potential
for surgical site infections. The Xi platform uses a magnified 3D HD vision,
endowrist instrumentation and intuitive motion with enhanced ergonomics to
deliver the best and most advanced patient care. Energy sources are
integrated into the platform eliminating the need for additional equipment in
the room. The addition of this equipment will increase access to robotic care
for patients as well as improve efficiency for better patient flow and
outcomes.

See attached quotes. The Intuitive Surgical daVinci Xi System equipment
cost is $2,150,750.

2. PROVIDE A TIMELINE OF EVENTS FOR THE PROJECT FROM
CON ISSUANCE THROUGH PROJECT COMPLETION
Upon receiving CON Issuance in July 2024 Mercy Hospital Joplin would
propose to purchase the second da Vinci Xi Surgical Platform in our
FY2025 2nd quarter of October through December 2024. Intuitive Lead
time for delivery of the Xi platform is 2-4 weeks and Mercy Joplin would
anticipate having the second da Vinci Xi Surgical Platform in utilization in
January of 2025.

3. PROVIDE A LEGIBLE CITY OR COUNTY MAP SHOWING THE
EXACT LOCATION OF THE PROJECT.

The new unit will be located within the operating suites at Mercy Hospital
Joplin, 100 Mercy Way, Joplin, Missouri. A map of Mercy’s service areas
is attached.




IDENTIFY SPECIFIC COMMUNITY PROBLEMS OR UNMET
NEEDS THE PROPOSAL WOULD ADDRESS.

This addition of this second da Vinci Xi system will enhance the level of
technology and availability to patients that reside in Mercy Joplin’s Service
area. [t will support the increase in minimally invasive surgeries and decrease
delays in access to the advanced technology for the patients we serve.

PROVIDE HISTORICAL UTILIZATION FOR EACH OF THE PAST
THREE YEARS AND UTILIZATION PROJECTIONS THROUGH
THE FIRST THREE FULL YEARS OF OPERATION OF THE NEW
EQUIPMENT.

FY2021 321
FY2022 365
FY2023 457
Projected:

FY2026 920
FY2027 967
FY2028 1015

PROVIDE THE METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS USED TO
PROJECT UTILIZATION.

Mercy Hospital Joplin uses a fiscal year reporting period that runs from July
1 — June 30. All utilization quantities and projections are based on this
reporting method.

In order to project utilization, historical procedure trends were reviewed.
Also, these projections take into consideration the upward trend in cancer care
surgical specialty. Numbers projected are considered conservative as it does
not include expansion into other surgical specialties such as Colorectal,
OB/GYN and Bariatrics, which is planned as a future expansion opportunity.
However, with current equipment, expansion opportunities do not exist with
access restraints. Projected growth also includes additional payor contracts
that have gone into effect recently for Mercy Joplin.

10



10.

11.

12.

DOCUMENT THAT CONSUMER NEEDS AND PREFERENCES HAVE
BEEN INCLUDED IN PLANNING THIS PROJECT AND DESCRIBE
HOW CONSUMERS HAD AN OPPORTUNITY TO PROVIDE INPUT.
There has not been any direct new releases to patients, however minimally
invasive surgery is on the rise. It reduces length ofstay, improves patient
outcomes and recovery and reduces potential for surgical site infections. Data
supports these statements and gives reasoning behind this request in our
strategic planning as a Ministry. Also, the movement of robotic services to an
outpatient setting, when possible, will increase patient satisfaction and
efficiency for better patient flow.

Increasing access within the facility will allow new physician recruitment and
expansion of surgical service lines.

PROVIDE COPIES OF ANY PETITIONS, LETTERS OF SUPPORT OR
OPPOSITION RECEIVED.
There 1s no known opposition to the proposed request. Letters of support to

move forward with this technology are attached.

DOCUMENT THAT PROVIDERS OF ALL AFFECTED

FACILITIES IN THE PROPOSED SERVICE WERE ADDRESSED
LETTERS REGARDING THE APPLICATION.

See attached letter to Freeman Health Systems. Freeman Hospital is the only
competing Robotic Surgical Program in our immediate service area and
therefore is the only Hospital to receive a letter identifying our intent to

purchase a second da Vinci Xi System.

11



DIVIDER III. COMMUNITY NEED CRITERIA AND STANDARDS:

1. FOR NEW UNITS, ADDRESS THE MINIMUM ANNUAL
UTILIZATION STANDARD FOR THE PROPOSED GEOGRAPHIC SERVICE
AREA.
The minimal annual utilization standard specifically for robotic systems is 240 cases,
Mercy Hospital Joplin case volumes as listed under Divider II, Section 7 and are well
above the minimal utilization standard. The projected volumes will be distributed
between multiple surgical specialties at Mercy Hospital Joplin. The Mercy Ministry
initiative to move more surgeries to minimally invasive creates a substantial need for
this request as there are access issues and restraints with current equipment. The increase
in robotically trained physician recruits to serve patients also adds necessity to this
request.

2 FOR ANY NEW UNIT WHERE SPECIFIC NEED AND UTILIZATION STAND
ARDS ARE NOT LISTED, PROVIDE THE METHODOLOGY FOR
DETERMINING NEED.

Mercy has committed to provide the highest level of care and in our role as a major
referral center, Mercy invests significant time and energy into the annual planning and
budgeting process and plan development. Recommendations are reviewed and
prioritized to deem financial projects most impactful to patients. As a Ministry, a key
initiative is to expand minimally invasive surgeries to patients to provide the highest
patient satisfaction and the best patient care. This project aligns with the Ministry’s
goals and initiatives..

3. FOR ADDITIONAL UNITS, DOCUMENT COMPLIANCE WITH THE
OPTIMAL UTILIZATION STANDARD, AND IF NOT ACHIEVED, PROVIDE
DOCUMENTATION TO JUSTIFY ADDITIONAL UNIT.

Questions 1 and 2 are applicable for this question.

4. FOR EVOLVING TECHNOLOGY ADDRESS THE FOLLOWING.

Not applicable. This is not considered evolving technology.
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Ernst & Young LLP Tel: +1 314 290 1000
Suite 2600 ey.com
7676 Forsyth Boulevard

Building a better St. Louis, MO 63105
working world

Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
Mercy Health

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Mercy Health, which comprise the
consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the related consolidated statements
of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes
(collectively referred to as the “financial statements™).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Mercy Health as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the results of its operations,
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of Mercy Health and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or erTor.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Mercy Health’s
ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are
issued.

2308-4316470 1

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of Mercy Health’s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

* Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Mercy Health’s ability to continue as a going

concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal

control-related matters that we identified during the audit.
ém:t v MLL?

2308-4316470 2

September 13, 2023

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Short-term investments
Other current assets

Total current assets

Investments

Property and equipment, net

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and net assets
Current liabilities:

Mercy Health

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In Thousands)

Current maturities of long-term obligations

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and related liabilities

Accrued liabilities and other

Total current liabilities

Insurance reserves and other liabilities

Pension liabilities

Long-term obligations, less current maturities

Total liabilities

Net assets:
Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions
Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes.

2207-4071966

June 30

2023 2022
529,638 $ 766,187
830,562 847,319
133,162 131,315
46,883 46,421
198,850 131,922
1,739,095 1,923,164
3,392,083 3,366,968
3,455,079 3,362,960
895.036 886,149
9481293 $§ 9.539.241
29,558 $ 32,709
445,718 459,449
502,586 499,880
440,021 628,273
1,417,883 1,620,311
669,710 650,023
231,654 269,048
2,173,361 2,198,157
4,492,608 4,737,539
4,806,304 4,626,359
182.381 175,343
4,988,685 4,801,702
9.481.293 $ 9.539.241

40



Mercy Health

Consolidated Statements of Operations

(In Thousands)

Operating revenues:
Patient service revenues
Capitation revenues
Other operating revenues

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits
Supplies and other
Medical claims expense
Interest
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment and severance
Total operating expenses

Operating gain (loss)

Nonoperating gains (losses):
Investment returns, net
Realized and unrealized gains on interest rate swaps, net
Other, net

Total nonoperating gains (losses), net

Excess (deficit) of revenues over expenses

Other changes in net assets without donor restrictions:
Pension liability adjustments
Net assets released from restrictions for property acquisitions
Other

Increase (decrease) in net assets without donor restrictions

See accompanying notes.

2207-4071966

Year Ended June 30
2023 2022
7,312,620 $ 6,741,659
237,392 227,616
468,384 500,264
8,018,396 7,469,539
4,559,367 4,329,054
2,936,005 2,674,241
102,682 93,313
75,230 67,889
314,332 310,884
18,979 7,774
8,006,595 7,483,155
11,801 (13,616)
101,582 (305,539)
16,9_37 31,300
(25,944) (11,429)
92,575 (285,668)
104,376 (299,284)
49,227 41,296
22,424 15,991
3,919 1,701
179946 § (240.296)
4
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Mercy Health

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
(In Thousands)

Year Ended June 30
2023 2022

Increase (decrease) in net assets without donor restrictions $ 179,946 $ (240,296)

Net assets with donor restrictions:

Pledges, bequests, and gifts for specific purposes 37,400 38,004
Investment returns, net 26 (3,995)
Net assets released from restrictions . (22,424) (15,991)
Other (7,965) (9,029)
Increase (decrease) in net assets without donor restrictions 7,037 8,989
Increase (decrease) in net assets 186,983 (231,307)
Net assets at beginning of year 4,801,702 5,033,009
Net assets at end of year $ 4988685 $ 4.801.702

See accompanying notes.

2207-4071966



Mercy Health

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In Thousands)

Operating activities
Increase (decrease) in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile (increase) decrease in net assets to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Impairment expense
Pension liability adjustments
Pledges, bequests, and gifts for specific purposes
Unrealized gain on interest rate swap
Depreciation and amortization
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Investments classified as trading
Inventories and other current assets
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities and other
Insurance reserves and other liabilities
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Investing activities

Additions to property and equipment, net
Net change in other assets

Net change in alternative investments
Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt, net of original
issue discount/premium and financing costs

Principal payments on long-term obligations

Pledges, bequests, and gifts for specific purposes

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of year

Supplemental disclosures
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash included in other assets
Restricted cash included in investments

Total cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalents

Cash paid for interest

See accompanying notes.

2207-4071966

Year Ended June 30
2023 2022
S 186,983 §$ (231,307)
11,877 -
(49,227) (41,296)
(37,400) (38,004)
(18,778) (42,837)
314,332 310,884
16,757 (93,631)
84,043 (7,732)
(68,776) (37,419)
(20,780) 132,649
(185,901) (416,657)
(19,401) (168,458)
213,729 (633,808)
(390,992) (341,503)
33,199 115,014
(137,308) 70,049
(495,101) (156,440)
374,940 —
(411,296) (37,836)
37,400 38,004
1,044 168
(280,328) (790,080)
994,153 1,784,233
$ 713825 § 994,153
$ 529,638 § 766,187
1,070 17,160
183,118 210,806
$ 713.826 § 994,153
$ 85951 § 76.611
6
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Mercy Health

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Tables in Thousands)

June 30, 2023

1. Organization

Mercy Health (Mercy) was incorporated in September 1986 and is the sole corporate member of
various health care corporations. Mercy is sponsored by Mercy Health Ministry, a Public Juridic
Person whose board members include Sisters of Mercy and lay leaders. Prior to sponsorship by
Mercy Health Ministry, Mercy was sponsored by the Institute of the Sisters of Mercy of the

Americas, Regional Community of St. Louis, a religious order of the Roman Catholic Church.

Mercy and each of its subsidiaries listed below are incorporated as not-for-profit corporations
under the laws of the state of incorporation and are tax-exempt organizations as described in
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (the Code).

Mercy’s ministry office (headquarters) is located in St. Louis, Missouri. The Health System
(Health System) is comprised of the following corporations and their subsidiaries:

All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

Mercy Health; St. Louis, Missouri

Mercy Health Fort Smith Communities; Fort Smith, Arkansas

Mercy Health Northwest Arkansas Communities; Rogers, Arkansas

Mercy Health East Communities; St. Louis, Missouri

Mercy Health Springfield Communities; Springfield, Missouri

Mercy Health Oklahoma Communities, Inc.; Oklahoma City and Ardmore, Oklahoma

Mercy Health Southwest Missouri/Kansas Communities and Joplin, Missouri

2308-4316470
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Mercy Health

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Tables in Thousands)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Investments in highly liquid debt instruments with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased, excluding amounts classified as investments, are considered cash equivalents. Cash
equivalents are recorded at fair value on the consolidated balance sheets and exclude amounts held
for long-term investment purposes and collateral posted on interest rate swap agreements, as those
amounts are commingled with investments and other assets, respectively. The Health System
routinely invests in money market mutual funds. These funds generally invest in highly liquid U.S.
government and agency obligations. Financial instruments that potentially subject the Health
System to concentrations of credit risk include the Health System’s cash and cash equivalents. The
Health System places its cash and cash equivalents with institutions with high credit quality.
However, at certain times, such cash and cash equivalents are in excess of government-provided
insurance limits.

Inventories

Inventories, which consist principally of medical supplies and pharmaceuticals, are stated at the
lower of cost or market. Cost is determined principally using the average cost method.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost or, if donated, at fair value at the date of receipt.
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of land and
leasehold improvements, buildings, and equipment. The estimated useful lives are as follows: land
and leasehold improvements, 2 to 40 years; buildings, 3 to 80 years; and equipment, 2 to 20 years.
Property and equipment under financing lease obligations are amortized using the straight-line
method over the lease term or the estimated useful life of the leased asset, whichever period is

shorter. Such amortization is included with depreciation on the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations.

2308-4316470 8
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Mercy Health

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Tables in Thousands)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
COVID-19

On March 27, 2020, President Trump signed into law the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic
Security Act (CARES Act), which has provided economic assistance to a wide array of industries,
including health care. The Health System recognized $29.8 million and $136.1 million of Provider
Relief Funds, which are recorded in other operating revenues in fiscal years 2023 and 2022,
respectively. Mercy received other CARES Act funding in addition to the Provider Relief Funds,
which are not material.

In April 2020, the Health System requested Medicare advance payments from the Centers for
Medicare & Medicaid Services’ (CMS) Accelerated and Advance Payment Program (Program)
designed to increase cash flow to Medicare providers and suppliers impacted by COVID-19. The
Health System received $649.9 million in April 2020. CMS began to recoup these advanced
payments in April 2021 and recouped $384.6 million during the year ended June 30, 2022 and the
remaining $197.2 million recouped in the year ended June 30, 2023.

The Health System has elected to defer the deposit and payment of the employer’s share of Social
Security taxes allowed under the CARES Act. As of June 30, 2022, the Health System had
$52.6 million of remaining deferred payments included in accrued payroll and related liabilities
on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. The Health System paid the remaining
$52.6 million in fiscal year 2023.

Asset Impairment

The Health System periodically evaluates the carrying value of its long-lived assets for impairment
when indicators of impairment are identified. These evaluations are primarily based on the
estimated recoverability of the assets’ carrying value based on undiscounted cash flows.
Impairment write-downs are recognized in operating income at the time the impairment
is identified.

2308-4316470 9
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Mercy Health

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Tables in Thousands)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments in Unconsolidated Affiliates

The equity method of accounting is used for investments in unconsolidated affiliates where the
Health System does not have significant control or where ownership is 50% or less. The equity
income or loss on these investments is recorded in other operating revenues on the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations.

Goodwill

The Health System records goodwill arising from a business combination as the excess of purchase
price and related costs over the fair value of identifiable tangible and intangible assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. The Health System annually reviews the carrying value of goodwill for
impairment. In addition, a goodwill impairment assessment is performed whenever circumstances
indicate a potential impairment may exist. If such circumstances suggest that the recorded amounts
of any of these assets cannot be recovered, the carrying values of such assets are reduced to fair
value. If the carrying value of any of these assets is impaired, a charge may be incurred to results
of operations.

Net Assets

The Health System’s net assets and activities are classified into two classes, with or without donor
restrictions, based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. The general nature
of the donor restrictions is to support the Health System’s indigent care mission and health
education programs and to assist with capital projects.

Patient Service Revenues and Patient Accounts Receivable

Patient service revenues and patient accounts receivable are reported at the amount that reflects

the consideration to which the Health System expects to be entitled in exchange for providing
patient care.

2308-4316470 10
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Mercy Health

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Tables in Thousands)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Capitation Revenues and Medical Claims Expense

Mercy has entered into various risk-based contracts with certain health maintenance organizations
(HMOs). Under these arrangements, Mercy receives capitated payments based on the demographic
characteristics of covered members in exchange for agreeing to provide certain medical services
to those members. These payments are reflected as capitation revenues on the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations. Mercy recognizes medical claims expense for services
provided to members from out-of-network providers. The medical claims expense represents
claims paid, claims reported but not yet paid, and an estimate of claims incurred but not reported
(IBNR). The claims IBNR amount is estimated based upon prior experience modified for current
trends. The claims IBNR amount was $14.6 million and $17.9 million at June 30, 2023 and 2022,
respectively, and was included in accrued liabilities and other on the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets.

Services to the Community

In support of its mission, the Health System provides care to patients who personally bear a
significant financial burden relative to their health care services and are deemed to be medically
indigent. Traditional charity care includes the cost of services provided to persons who cannot
afford health care because of the financial burden of the health care services and/or who are
uninsured or underinsured. Traditional charity care also includes services for which the patient
may not participate in the charity care process but is otherwise deemed to meet the Health System’s
charity care policy.

Because the Health System does not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity
care, such amounts are not reported as patient service revenue. The cost of traditional charity care
was $121.3 million and $134.6 million in 2023 and 2022, respectively. The Health System
estimates cost of charity care using a calculated ratio of costs to charges by hospital and clinic and
applies that ratio to the relevant gross charges.

2308-4316470 48



Mercy Health

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Tables in Thousands)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Health care services to patients under government programs, such as Medicare and Medicaid, are
also considered part of the Health System’s benefit provided to the community, since a portion of
such services is reimbursed at amounts less than cost. In addition, the Health System maintains
community benefit programs designed to positively impact the health status of the communities
served. These services include various clinics and outreach programs (designed to deliver health
care services to underserved communities), medical education and research activities, and direct
cash and in-kind charitable contributions.

These community benefit programs also include the activities of Mercy Ministries of Laredo,
Mercy Caritas, Catherine’s Fund, and Mercy Family Center, which are administered by the Health
System. These programs finance charitable activities to help meet the needs of the poor and sick.

Investments

Investments include assets set aside through resolution by the Board of Directors for future
long-term purposes. In addition, investments include amounts contributed by donors with
stipulated restrictions. Investments also include amounts held by trustees under bond indenture
agreements, as well as amounts held under the terms of other trust agreements. These assets include
investments in equity securities and debt securities, which are measured at fair value. The cost of
securities sold is based on the specific-identification method. The Health System accounts for its
ownership interest in alternative investments based on the net asset value (NAV). Management
has utilized the best available information for reported alternative investment values, which in
some instances are valuations as of an interim date.

For purposes of recognizing investment returns as a component of excess (deficit) of revenues over
expenses, substantially all investments, other than alternative investments, are considered to be
trading securities. Investment returns arising from donor-restricted resources are reported as a
direct increase or decrease in net assets with donor restrictions on the accompanying consolidated
statements of changes in net assets, consistent with the donors’ restrictions. In addition, a portion
of investments is used to fund payments of professional liability claims and, as a result, the
investment returns related to the amount of investments expected to settle the professional liability
are included in other operating revenues within the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations. All other investment returns, including alternative investments, are included in
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

nonoperating gains and losses on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. In
addition, cash flows from the purchases and sales of marketable securities designated as trading

are reported as a component of operating activities on the accompanying consolidated statements
of cash flows.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative financial instruments are contracts between the Health System and a third party
(counterparty) that provide for economic payments between the parties based on changes in a
defined market security or index or combination thereof. The Health System’s derivative financial
instruments are primarily interest rate swap agreements utilized as part of its debt management
process. The Health System recognizes all derivative financial instruments as either assets or
liabilities on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at fair value. The Health System does
not offset fair value amounts recognized for derivative financial instruments or fair value amounts
posted as cash collateral. The Health System does not account for any of its interest rate swap
agreements as hedges and, accordingly, realized and unrealized gains (losses) and net settlement
payments are reflected as a component of nonoperating gains and losses on the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations.

Pledges, Bequests, and Gifts for Specific Purposes

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the
promise is received. Conditional promises to give and indications of intentions to give are reported
at fair value at the date the gift is received. Gifts are recorded as an increase in net assets with
donor restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the assets.
Upon expenditure in accordance with a donor’s restrictions and when the asset is placed in service,
net assets restricted for capital acquisitions are reported as direct additions to net assets without
donor restrictions, and assets restricted for operating purposes are reported as an increase in other
operating revenues. Donor-restricted contributions for operating purposes whose restrictions are
met within the same year as received, and contributions received by donors without restrictions,
are reflected as other operating revenues on the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Operating Indicator

The Health System’s operating indicator operating gain (loss) includes all revenue, gains and other
support, and expenses directly related to the health care operations during the reporting period.
The operating indicator excludes nonoperating gains and losses, pension liability adjustments, and
net assets released from restrictions for property acquisitions.

Performance Indicator

The Health System’s performance indicator, excess (deficit) of revenues over expenses, includes
all changes in net assets without donor restrictions other than pension liability adjustments, and
net assets released from restrictions for property acquisitions.

Operating and Nonoperating Gains (Losses)

The Health System’s primary mission is to meet the health care needs in its market areas by
providing general health care services to residents within communities served, including acute
inpatient, subacute inpatient, physician, outpatient, ambulatory, and home care, as well as related
general and administrative services. Activities directly associated with the furtherance of this
purpose are considered to be operating activities. Other activities that result in gains or losses
peripheral to the Health System’s primary mission are considered to be nonoperating.
Nonoperating activities include net investment returns, excluding the estimated earnings related to
the investments attributed to professional liabilities, pension liability adjustments, and net realized
and unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate swaps.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Federal Income Tax

Primarily all of the Health System entities are recognized by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS)
as exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as charitable
organizations qualifying under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3), by virtue of IRS
determination letters or inclusion in the Official Catholic Directory. The Health System completed
an analysis of its tax positions in accordance with applicable accounting guidance and determined
that no amounts were required to be recognized on the consolidated financial statements at June 30,
2023 or 2022.

3. Patient Service Revenue and Patient Receivables

Patient service revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration the Health System
expects to be paid for providing patient care. Revenue is recognized as performance obligations,
based on the nature of the services provided by the Health System, are satisfied. Performance
obligations satisfied over time relate to patients receiving inpatient acute care services from
admission to the point when services are no longer required, which is generally at the time of
discharge. Revenue for performance obligations satisfied over time is recognized based on actual
charges incurred in relation to total expected or actual charges. Outpatient services are
performance obligations satisfied at a point in time and revenue is recognized when goods or
services are provided and the Health System does not believe it is required to provide additional
goods or services. Management believes this method provides a fair depiction of the transfer of
services over the term of performance obligations based on the inputs needed to satisfy the
obligations.

The Health System has elected to apply the optional exception provided in FASB
ASC 606-10-50-14(a), because substantially all of its performance obligations relate to contracts
with a duration of less than one year. Therefore, the Health System is not required to disclose the
aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to performance obligations that are unsatisfied
or partially satisfied at the end of the reporting period. The unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied
performance obligations referred to above are primarily related to inpatient acute care services at
the end of the reporting period. The performance obligations for these contracts are generally
completed when the patients are discharged, which generally occurs within days or weeks of the
end of the reporting period.
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3. Patient Service Revenue and Patient Receivables (continued)

The Health System uses a portfolio approach to account for categories of patient contracts as a
collective group, rather than recognizing revenue on an individual contract basis. The portfolios
consist of major payor classes for inpatient revenue and outpatient revenue. Based on the historical
collection trends and other analysis, the Health System believes that revenue recognized by
utilizing the portfolio approach approximates the revenue that would have been recognized if an
individual contract approach were used.

The Health System determines the transaction price, which involves significant estimates and
judgment, based on standard charges for goods and services provided, reduced by explicit and
implicit price concessions, including contractual adjustments provided to third-party payors,
discounts provided to uninsured and underinsured patients in accordance with policy, and/or
implicit price concessions based on the historical collection experience of patient accounts. The
Health System determines the transaction price associated with services provided to patients who
have third-party payor coverage with Medicare, Medicaid, managed care programs, and other
third-party payors based on reimbursement terms per contractual agreements, discount policies,
and historical experience. Payment arrangements with those payors include prospectively
determined rates per admission or visit, reimbursed costs, discounted charges, per diem rates, and
value-based payments. Reported costs and/or services provided under certain of the arrangements
are subject to retroactive audit and adjustment. Patient service revenues (net of contractuals and
discounts) are recorded during the period the health care services are provided and are reported at
estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors, and others for services
rendered, including estimated retroactive revenue adjustments due to future audits, reviews, and
investigations. Estimates of contractual allowances under managed care health plans are based
upon the services provided, historical payment rates, and the payment terms specified in the related
contractual agreements. Revenues related to uninsured patients have discounts applied in
accordance with the Health System’s policy. Patient service revenues decreased by approximately
$35.3 million in 2023 and $28.1 million in 2022 due to revised estimates consisting primarily of
retroactive third-party adjustments for years that are subject to audits, reviews, and investigations.
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3. Patient Service Revenue and Patient Receivables (continued)

The following is a summary of the Health System’s patient service revenues by major payor
source, net of price concessions, for the years ended June 30:

2023 2022
Medicare $ 3,153,732 § 2,863,624
Medicaid 758,962 650,814
Managed care/other 3,328,102 3,187,078
Self-pay 71,824 40,143

$ 7,312,620 $ 6,741,659

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are extremely complex and
subject to interpretation. As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates
will change by a material amount in the near term. Noncompliance with Medicare and Medicaid
laws and regulations can make the Health System subject to significant regulatory action, including
substantial fines and penalties, as well as exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs.

The Health System provides health care services through inpatient and outpatient care facilities
located in several states. The Health System grants credit to patients in return for health care
services rendered to said patients, substantially all of whom are residents of the communities
served. The Health System does not require collateral or other security in extending credit to
patients; however, it routinely obtains assignment of (or is otherwise entitled to receive) patients’
benefits payable under their health insurance programs, plans, or policies (e.g., Medicare,
Medicaid, HMOs, and commercial insurance policies). At June 30, 2023 and 2022, approximately
41% and 43%, respectively, of net accounts receivable were collectible from governmental payors
(including Medicare and Medicaid), with approximately 49% and 50%, respectively, of net
accounts receivable collectible from commercial insurance and managed care payors. One
managed care payor represented 20% and 19% of net accounts receivable for 2023 and 2022,
respectively.
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4. Financial Assets and Liquidity Resources

As of June 30, financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general
expenditure, such as operating expenses, scheduled principal payments on debt, and capital

expenditures not financed with debt, were as follows:

2023 2022

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 529,638 $ 766,187

Accounts receivable 830,562 847,319

Other current assets 198,850 131,922

Investments 3,438,966 3,413,389
Total financial assets 4,998,016 5,158,817
Less:

Cash and investments with donor restrictions (103,506) (112,975)

Pledge receivable with restrictions (42,803) (42,581)

Investments with liquidity of more than one year (920,970) (832,907)
Total financial assets available within one year 3,930,737 4,170,354
Liquidity resources:

Unused lines of credit 425,000 100,000
Total financial assets and liquidity resources available

within one year $ 4,355,737 $ 4,270,354

As part of the Health System’s investment policy, the Health System holds highly liquid
investments to enhance its ability to satisfy liquidity. To manage liquidity, the Health System
maintains general operating lines of credit that may be drawn upon as needed to manage cash

flows. Refer to Note 11 for further information.

The availability of certain amounts within the board-designated investments may change in

accordance with board policies at any time.
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5. Investments

The following is a summary of investments:

Without donor restrictions
Restricted by donor or grantor
Total investments

Less short-term investments

The following is a summary of investments by classification:

Cash and cash equivalents
Equities:
Domestic equities
International equities
Fixed income:
Mutual funds
Corporate bonds
Government and agencies
Alternative investments:
Hedge funds
Private partnerships
Other
Amount due to brokers
Amounts due from brokers

Less short-term investments
Total investments

2308-4316470

June 30
2023 2022

$ 3,335,460 § 3,300,414
103,506 112,975

3,438,966 3,413,389
(46,883) (46,421)

$ 3,392,083 $ 3,366,968

June 30
2023 2022

$ 183,108 $ 210,806

596,499 743,104
463,075 483,021

197,251 292,581
517,100 561,913

198,824 164,526
346,154 155,918
909,752 788,536
27,959 27,821
(10,122) (33,351)
7,366 18,514

3,438966 3,413,389
(46,883) (46,421)

$ 3,392,083 $ 3,366,968
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5. Investments (continued)

The following is a summary of investment returns:

Year Ended June 30
2023 2022

Investments:

Interest and dividends $ 41,434 § 13,227

Realized (losses) gains, net (53,390) 182,986

Unrealized gains (losses), net 113,538 (501,752)
Investment returns included in nonoperating gains, net 101,582 (305,539)
Investment returns included in net assets with

donor restrictions 26 (3,995)
Investment returns included in other operating revenues 1,933 (3,670)
Total investment returns $ 103,541 $ (313,204)

Investment return is reduced by external and direct internal investment expenses.

The Health System’s investments are exposed to various kinds and levels of risk. Fixed-income
securities expose the Health System to interest rate risk, currency risk, credit risk, and liquidity
risk. As interest rates change, the value of many fixed-income securities is affected, particularly
those with fixed rates. Currency risk is the risk associated with fluctuations in foreign exchange
rates. Credit risk is the risk that the obligor of the security will not fulfill its obligations. Liquidity
risk is affected by the willingness of market participants to buy and sell given securities. Equity
securities expose the Health System to market risk, currency risk, performance risk, and liquidity
risk. Market risk is the risk associated with major movements of the equity markets, both foreign
and domestic. Currency risk as previously defined tends to be higher for emerging market equities.
Performance risk is the risk associated with a company’s operating performance. Liquidity risk as
previously defined tends to be higher for foreign equities and small capitalization equities.
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5. Investments (continued)

Certain of the Health System’s investments are made through alternative investments, primarily
private limited partnership investments (equity, debt, real asset) and absolute return (hedge) funds.
These investments provide the Health System with a proportionate share of the investment gains
and losses. The fund manager has full discretionary authority (within its given mandate) over the
investment decisions and provides the net asset valuation, typically through third-party
administrators. The hedge funds and private limited partnership funds present risks similar to those
of traditional investments, as well as some additional risks. Due to the fact that these funds are
invested through limited partnerships or other illiquid fund vehicles, pricing is infrequent and
liquidity may also be limited, in some cases, up to 24 months for hedge funds. Due to infrequent
pricing and illiquidity of underlying investments, it is common practice for private limited
partnership funds to require investors to commit to a ten-year fund term, although the distribution
of capital is likely to occur prior to the ten-year termination date. Certain hybrid limited partnership
funds may invest in liquid securities; however, the investments would be inaccessible for the term
of the structure. Terms for these hybrid vehicles could be shorter in duration, lasting up to five
years for the full investment and distribution periods. These investments may also employ
leverage, which may lead to additional risk of loss. These investments are subject to market risk,
interest rate risk, currency risk, credit risk, performance risk, and liquidity risk, as well as various
other types of risks. At June 30, 2023, the Health System has commitments to fund an additional
$760.4 million in these investments.

6. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurements and disclosures topic of the FASB ASC establishes a fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurement)
and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurement).

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy and a description of the valuation methodologies used
for instruments measured at fair value are as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of
the reporting date.
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6. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

Level 2 — Pricing inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, which are either directly
observable or can be derived or supported from observable data as of the reporting date.

Level 3 — Pricing inputs include those that are significant to the fair value of the financial asset
or financial liability and are not observable from objective sources. In evaluating the
significance of input, the Health System generally classifies assets or liabilities as Level 3
when their fair value is determined using unobservable inputs that individually, or when
aggregated with other unobservable inputs, represent more than 10% of the fair value of the
assets or liabilities. These inputs may be used with internally developed methodologies that
result in management’s best estimate of fair value.

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis were determined
using the following inputs at June 30, 2023:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Investments:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 180,352 $ - 8 - 3 180,352
Equities:
Domestic equities 470,139 - - 470,139
International equities 96,235 - - 96,235
Fixed income:
Mutual funds 197,251 - - 197,251
Corporate bonds - 271,716 - 277,716
Government and agencies 6,903 191,921 - 198,824
Other - 4,413 - 4,413
Assets at NAV:
Hedge funds 346,154
Private partmership 909,752
Commingled funds 734,584
Other 23,546
Total investments $ 3,438,966
Deferred compensation plan assets:
Equities — mutual funds $ 295,079 $ - § - $ 295,079
Collateral posted on interest rate swap
agreements $ 1,070 § - $ - $ 1,070
Liabilities
Interest rate swap agreements $ - 3 4,880 $ - $ 4,880
2308-4316470 22
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6. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis were determined
using the following inputs at June 30, 2022:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Investments:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 195969 §$ - § - 5 195,969
Equities:
Domestic equities 549,057 - - 549,057
International equities 147,401 - - 147,401
Fixed income:
Mutual funds 292,581 - - 292,581
Corporate bonds - 374,080 - 374,080
Government and agencies 13,758 150,768 - 164,526
Other - 3,947 - 3,947
Assets at NAV:
Hedge funds 155,918
Private partnership 788,536
Commingled funds 717,500
Other 23.874
Total investments $ 3.413.389
Deferred compensation plan assets:
Equities — mutual funds $ 259,047 $ - $ - $ 259,047
Collateral posted on interest rate swap
agreements $ 17,160 § - - 8 17,160
Liabilities
Interest rate swap agreements $ - 3 23,767 $ - § 23,767

Deferred compensation plan assets and collateral posted on interest rate swaps agreements are
reported in other assets, and interest rate swaps (liabilities) are reported in insurance reserves and
other liabilities on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
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6. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

The following is a description of the Health System’s valuation methodologies for assets and
liabilities measured at fair value. Fair value for Level | is based upon quoted market prices.
The fair value of certain Level 2 securities was determined using multiple price types of bid/offer,
last traded, settlement, evaluated, and the official primary exchange close-time pricing, provided
by third-party pricing services if quoted market prices were not available. The quality of the prices
received is evaluated through price comparisons and tolerance level checks. These Level 2
investments include corporate bonds, treasuries, and agencies. The fair values of the interest rate
swap contracts, also Level 2 measurements, are determined based on the present value of expected
future cash flows using discount rates appropriate with the risks involved. The valuations reflect a
credit spread adjustment to the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) discount curve in order
to reflect nonperformance risk.

The credit spread adjustment is derived from the Health System’s and other comparable rated
entities’ bonds priced in the market and adjusted with a gross-up of the tax-exempt spread to a
taxable equivalent spread for the Health System and counterparty bond trading levels (or credit
default swap spreads).

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, pledges receivable, and
current liabilities are reasonable estimates of their fair values due to the short-term nature of these
financial instruments. The fair value of the Health System’s fixed rate bonds is based on quoted
market prices for the same or similar issues and approximates $1.5 billion and $1.5 billion as of
June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, which is a Level 2 measurement. The carrying amount
approximates fair value for all other long-term debt, which is variable rate, and excludes the impact
of third-party credit enhancements; this is a Level 2 measurement.

Due to the volatility of the financial markets, there is a reasonable possibility of changes in fair
value and additional gains and losses in the near term subsequent to June 30, 2023.
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7. Property and Equipment

The following is a summary of property and equipment:

June 30
2023 2022
Land, land improvements, and leasehold
improvements $ 369,061 $ 370,258
Buildings 4,778,777 4,504,459
Equipment 3,093,926 2,979,319
Construction-in-progress 238,598 295,371
8,480,362 8,149,407
Less accumulated depreciation (5,025,283) (4,786,447)
Property and equipment, net $ 3,455,079 $ 3,362,960

At June 30, 2023, construction, capital, and software-related contracts and commitments exist for
capital improvements at certain of the Health System’s facilities. The remaining commitment on
these contracts at June 30, 2023 was approximately $201.2 million. During the years ended
June 30, 2023 and 2022, interest of $8.5 million and $4.9 million, respectively, was capitalized.
During the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Health System recorded impairment of
$11.9 million and $0, respectively.

8. Other Assets

The following is a summary of other assets:

June 30
2023 2022
Right-of-use assets $ 210,025 $§ 226,152
Deferred compensation plan assets 295,079 259,047
Goodwill 195,609 191,801
Investment in unconsolidated affiliates 118,462 120,827
Swap collateral 1,070 17,160
Land held for future development 22,130 22,946
Other 52,661 48,216

$ 895,036 $§ 886,149
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8. Other Assets (continued)

The following is a summary of accrued liabilities and other:

June 30
2023 2022
Medicare advance payments $ - $ 197,248
Operating lease liabilities 50,892 61,824
Estimated amounts due to third-party payors 172,976 146,364
Accrued other expenses 216,153 222,837

$ 440,021 § 628,273

9. Liability Programs

The Health System administers a liability program to provide for general and professional liability
risks within certain limits. Health care professional liabilities in excess of self-insured limits are
insured on a claims-made basis subject to an annual maximum of $25.0 million over the self-
insured retention of $10.0 million, after which the Health System would again be responsible. The
recorded liabilities are based upon actuarial estimates of reported claims and IBNR claims using
historical claim experience and other relevant industry and hospital-specific factors and trends,
discounted at an interest rate of 3.00% for 2023 and 2022.

The discounted general and professional liability was $184.0 million and $180.0 million at
June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, which is included in accrued liabilities and other and
insurance reserves and other liabilities on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. In
addition, at June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Health System recorded net insurance receivables of
$4.9 million and $4.2 million, respectively, which are included in other assets on the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
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10. Employee Retirement Plans

Defined Contribution Plans

The Health System retirement benefits are provided through 401(k) and 403(b) plans covering all
eligible employees. All contributions to the plan are subject to IRS limitations on contributions
and includable compensation. There are three primary types of contributions to these plans:
employee deferrals, employer service-based contributions, and employer matching contributions.

Benefits for employer service-based contributions are determined as a percentage of a participant’s
salary and based on his or her years of service for certain entities. Benefits for employer matching
contributions are determined as a percentage of an eligible participant’s annual deferrals. These
employer contributions are funded annually and become fully vested over three years of vesting
service. For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the total expenses incurred related to these
defined contribution plans were $146.6 million and $135.6 million, respectively.

Defined Benefit Plans

The Health System has frozen defined benefit retirement plans. The plans were designed to provide
retirement benefits to substantially all coworkers. The plans were cash balance-type formula. The
cash balance formula provided an annual pay credit, based on employee compensation and years
of service, and an annual 5% interest credit based on the U.S. Treasury bill rates. Coworkers with
benefits earned under the cash balance formula continue to earn interest credits each year. The
interest credit continues to be based on the U.S. Treasury bill rates. The plans are funded consistent
with actuarial funding recommendations and the funding policy.

The Health System has frozen nonqualified defined benefit retirement plans that provide
retirement income in excess of the limitations on benefits imposed by IRS limitations to certain
key executives.
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10. Employee Retirement Plans (continued)

The following table sets forth the frozen defined benefit retirement plans’ benefit obligation, fair
value of plan assets, and funded status at the measurement date:

June 30
2023 2022

Accumulated benefit obligation $ 599,700 $ 648,513

Changes in projected benefit obligation:
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 648513 §$

795,431
Interest cost 26,162 13,444
Actuarial gain (20,468) (100,823)
Benefits paid (54,507) (59,539)
Projected benefit obligation at end of year 599,700 648,513
Changes in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 375,693 484,860
Actual return on plan assets 29,073 (65,306)
Employer contributions 14,370 15,678
Benefits paid (54,507) (59,539)

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 364,629 375,693

Funded status

$ (235,071) $ (272,820)

Amounts recognized on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at June 30 consist of the
following:

2023 2022

Accrued liabilities and other $

(B417) $ (3,772)
Pension liabilities

(231,654) (269,048)
$ (235,071) $ (272,820)

No plan assets are expected to be returned to the Health System during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2023.
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10. Employee Retirement Plans (continued)

Included in net assets without donor restrictions are the following amounts that have not yet been
recognized in net periodic pension cost:

Year Ended June 30
2023 2022
Unrecognized actuarial gain $ (272,416) $ (322,721)
Prior service cost 7,096 8,174

$ (265320) § (314,547)

Changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in net assets without donor restrictions
include the following:

Year Ended June 30
2023 2022
Current year actuarial gain $ 25901 $ 10,554
Amortization of actuarial loss 7,185 10,551
Settlement reduction of net actuarial loss 17,219 21,269
Amortization of prior service costs (1,078) (1,078)

$ 49,227 § 41,296

The estimated net actuarial loss included in net assets without donor restrictions and expected to
be recognized in net periodic pension cost during the year ending June 30, 2023 is $6.9 million.
The impact of the change in discount rate on the projected benefit obligation of the plans was a
decrease of approximately $21.5 million and $114.7 million for the years ended June 30,2023 and
2022, respectively.
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10. Employee Retirement Plans (continued)

The following is a summary of the components of net periodic pension cost:

Year Ended June 30
2023 2022
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation $ 26,162 $ 13,444
Expected return on plan assets (23,641) (24,963)
Amortization of prior service costs (1,078) (1,078)
Amortization of unrecognized actuarial loss 7,185 10,551
Settlement/curtailment 17,219 21,269
Net periodic pension cost S 25,847 § 19,223

The components of net periodic pension cost are included in the line item “other, net” on the
consolidated statements of operations.

Weighted average assumptions used to determine the plans’ projected benefit obligation and net
periodic pension cost are as follows:

Projected Benefit Obligation  Net Periodic Pension Cost
2023 2022 2023 2022

Discount rates 5.08%-5.09% 4.61%-4.63% 4.25%4.28% 1.76%1.84%

Expected long-term
return on plan assets  6.50%—6.50% 6.10%—6.10% 6.10%—6.10% 5.90%—5.90%
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10. Employee Retirement Plans (continued)

The plans’ weighted average asset allocations and policy allocation range, by asset category, are
as follows:

Policy Allocation  Plan Assets at June 30

Asset Category Range 2023 2022
Equity securities 43%-53% 47% 48%
Debt securities 33-43 36 37
Real assets 0-10 - 8
Absolute returns and hedge funds 3-13 13 3
Cash 0-10 4 4
Total 100% 100%

The Health System was outside of these policy allocations for a short period during 2021 with the
proper approval. The plans’ assets measured at fair value were determined using the following
inputs at June 30, 2023:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 15,523 §$ - 8§ - $ 15,523
Equity securities:

Domestic equities 113,107 - - 113,107

International equities 2,558 - - 2,558
Fixed income:

Corporate bonds — 100,143 - 100,143

Government and agencies - 30,539 - 30,539
Other - - 2,870 2,870
Assets at NAV:

Commingled funds 99,687

$ 364,427
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10. Employee Retirement Plans (continued)

The plans’ assets measured at fair value were determined using the following inputs at June 30,
2022:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents = $ 23,060 $ - 8§ -3 23,060
Equity securities:

Domestic equities 98,394 - - 98,394

International equities 10,355 - - 10,355
Fixed income:

Mutual funds 70,822 - - 70,822

Corporate bonds — 38.268 - 38,268

Government and agencies - 22,003 — 22,003
Other - - 2,824 2,824
Assets at NAV:

Commingled funds 109,967

$ 375,693

Fair value methodologies for Level 1 and Level 2 assets are consistent with the inputs described
in Note 6.

Management opted to use the NAV per share, or its equivalent, as a practical expedient for fair
value of the plans’ interest commingled funds. Valuations provided by the respective fund’s
management include variables such as the financial performance of underlying investments, recent
sales prices of underlying investments, and other pertinent information. In addition, actual market
exchanges at period-end provide additional observable market inputs of the exit price. The
majority of these funds have restrictions on the timing of withdrawals, which may reduce liquidity,
in some cases for up to 24 months in the case of hedge funds and up to 10 years for private limited
partnership funds.
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10. Employee Retirement Plans (continued)

The plans retain outside consultants to support the overall asset allocation and manager selection
process. The performance of all managers is reviewed to test that market performance has been
calculated accurately, to monitor performance vs. peers and benchmarks, and to evaluate portfolio
structure considering current and future needs based on economic forecasts and actuarial
projections. Mercy believes that a diversified portfolio will limit the degree of risk to the plans and
stabilize the long-term results. The plans’ diversified blend of marketable securities also takes into
consideration the cash flow requirements of the plans to help ensure the ability to meet the monthly
payout of benefits required. Projected rates of return for each asset category were selected after
analyzing historical experience and future expectations of the returns and volatility for assets of
that category.

The Health System expects to contribute at least $12.0 million to the plans during fiscal 2024.

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, are expected to be paid by
the plans:

Amount
Year ending June 30:

2024 $ 61,400
2025 62,000
2026 60,300
2027 57,300
2028 52,300
2029 through 2033 226,800

$ 520,100
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11. Long-Term Obligations

The following is a summary of long-term obligations:

June 30
2023 2022

Revenue bonds, fixed interest rates of 2.20%—5.00%

due through 2053 $ 1,542,230 § 1,554,120
Revenue bonds, variable interest rates with weighted

average interest rates of 3.82% and 0.71% in fiscal 2023

and 2022, respectively, due through June 2053 373,440 374,940
Financing lease obligations 241,242 251,747
Other mortgage notes and notes 2,412 2,556

2,159,324 2,183,363

Less current maturities of long-term obligations (29,558) (32,709)
Add unamortized debt issuance costs and debt

premiums, net 43,595 47,503
Long-term obligations, less current maturities $ 2,173,361 $§ 2,198,157

Certain of Mercy’s subsidiaries have executed a commitment agreement governing certain
borrowing arrangements under the Mercy Master Trust Indenture and related agreements
(Financing Agreements). While only the revenues of Mercy collateralize the outstanding
borrowings of the Health System, each of these subsidiaries has committed to transfer such funds
to Mercy to pay the amounts due on borrowings when they come due. The Financing Agreements
contain certain restrictive covenants, including a debt service coverage ratio. At June 30, 2023,
Mercy was in compliance with all covenants.

Tax-exempt revenue bonds have been issued by various issuing authorities, the proceeds of which
were used by Mercy primarily to finance capital projects and to refinance existing indebtedness of
certain subsidiaries.
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11. Long-Term Obligations (continued)

In October 2020, $378.6 million of fixed rate, tax-exempt health facility revenue bonds were
issued by the Health and Educational Facilities Authority of the State of Missouri on behalf of
Mercy under the Master Trust Indenture. The proceeds were used to reimburse Mercy for project
costs and to pay certain costs related to issuance. The bonds have various maturities between
June 1, 2050 and June 1, 2053. Coupon rates were set at 3.00% and 4.00%, with yields to maturity
ranging from 3.05% to 3.47%. Most of the bonds were sold to institutional investors. The net
premium paid to the Health System totaled $22.7 million. Issuance costs totaled $1.3 million.

In June 2021, $76.4 million of variable rate, tax-exempt health facility revenue bonds were issued
by the Health and Educational Facilities Authority of the State of Missouri on behalf of Mercy
under the Master Trust Indenture. The proceeds were used to refinance the Series 2017AB bonds.
The bonds were directly purchased by one bank and have a final maturity of 2053. Interest is paid
monthly at a borrowing rate based on a percentage of one-month LIBOR plus an applicable spread.
The bonds include mandatory puts by the purchasing bank in 2026. Mercy may elect to renegotiate
with the initial purchasers, remarket, or redeem the bonds at any time. Other notes payable,
mortgage notes payable, and financing lease obligations are secured by certain property and
equipment of the specific borrowers.

In August 2022, $374.9 million of variable rate, tax-exempt health facility revenue bonds were
issued by the Health and Educational Facilities Authority of the State of Missouri on behalf of
Mercy under the Master Trust Indenture. The proceeds were used to refinance the Series 2014BC
and Series 2021AB bonds.

The bonds were directly purchased by two banks. No change was made to the principal amount or
original maturity dates scheduled between June 1, 2023 and February 1, 2053. Mandatory put dates
by the purchasing banks originally scheduled between June 2023 and June 2026 were extended to
August 2029 to August 2032. Interest paid monthly reflects a borrowing rate based on an adjusted
percentage of one-month term Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) plus an adjusted

applicable spread. Mercy may elect to renegotiate with the initial purchasers or remarket or redeem
the bonds.
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11. Long-Term Obligations (continued)

Aggregate maturities of long-term obligations as scheduled at June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Year ending June 30:
2024 $ 29,558
2025 46,147
2026 46,078
2027 46,193
2028 46,899
Thereafter 1,944,449

$ 2,159,324

The Health System has a total of $425.0 million of unused lines of credit with four banks, all of
which terminate in November 2025. During 2023 and 2022, the Health System had no borrowings
against the lines of credit. There were no borrowings outstanding under these lines of credit as of
June 30, 2023.

12. Derivatives

The Health System has interest-rate-related derivative instruments to manage its interest rate
exposure on its variable rate debt instruments and does not enter into derivative instruments for
any purpose other than risk management. Interest rate swap contracts between the Health System
and a third party (counterparty) provide for the periodic exchange of payments between the parties
based on changes in a defined index and a fixed rate. These agreements expose the Health System
to market risk and credit risk. Credit risk is the risk that contractual obligations of the
counterparties will not be fulfilled. Concentrations of credit risk relate to groups of counterparties
that have similar economic or industry characteristics that would cause their ability to meet
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic or other conditions.
Counterparty credit risk is managed by requiring high credit standards for the Health System’s
counterparties. The Health System will enter into transactions where the counterparty rating is high
enough to maintain the rating on Health System bonds. The interest rate swap contracts contain
collateral provisions applicable to both parties to mitigate credit risk. As of June 30, 2023 and
2022, Mercy had collateral posted of $1.07 million and $17.2 million, respectively. The Health
System does not anticipate nonperformance by its counterparties. Market risk is the adverse effect
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12. Derivatives (continued)

on the value of a financial instrument that results from a change in interest rates. The market risk
associated with interest rate changes is managed by establishing and monitoring parameters that
limit the types and degree of market risk that may be undertaken. Management also mitigates risk
through periodic reviews of the Health System’s derivative positions in the context of its blended
cost of capital.

The following is a summary of the outstanding positions under these interest rate swap agreements:

Interest Rate  Expiration Health System  Health System Notional Value June 30

Swap Type Date Pays Receives 2023 2022
70% of one-
Fixed payor June 2, 2031 3.36%-3.75%  month LIBOR $§ 252,200 $ 252,200
70% of one-
Fixed payor June 2,2031 3.85% month LIBOR 50,000 50,000
67% of one-
Fixed payor  February 1, 2043 1.847% month LIBOR 73,440 74,940

The fair value of derivative instruments is as follows:

Derivatives Not Designated Consolidated Balance June 30
as Hedging Instruments Sheet Location 2023 2022
Collateral posted on interest rate
swap agreements Other assets $ 1070 $ 17,160
Interest rate swap agreements Other liabilities 4,880 23,767

The effects of derivative instruments on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations
for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 are reflected in realized and unrealized gains (losses)
on interest rate swaps on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

13. Leases

The Health System leases certain health care equipment, vehicles, and real property. Most leases
include options to renew, index and non-index escalation clauses, and options to purchase the
leased property, all of which are factored into the determination of lease payments when
appropriate.
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13. Leases (continued)

For leases with a term greater than 12 months, the Health System records the related right-of-use
assets and liabilities at the present value of lease payments over the term of the lease. Lease
payments are discounted using a municipal taxable yield curve utilizing AA ratings. The Health
System separates lease and non-lease components for real property. For all other classes of assets,
the Health System has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components.

The Health System elected not to apply the recognition requirements of ASC 842 to short-term
leases. The Health System recognizes short-term lease payments in excess (deficit) of revenues
over expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term and variable lease payments in the period
in which the obligation for those payments is incurred. The Health System also elected the package
of transition provisions available that allowed carryforward of the historical assessment of:
(1) whether contracts are or contain leases, (2) lease classification, and (3) initial direct costs.

Operating and finance lease right-of-use assets and lease liabilities as of June 30 were as follows:

2023 2022

Operating leases
Right-of-use assets:

Other assets $ 210,025 $ 226,152
Lease liabilities:

Other current liabilities $ 50,892 $ 61,824

Insurance reserves and other liabilities 175,687 169,534
Total operating lease liabilities $ 226579 $ 231,358
Finance leases
Right-of-use assets:

Property and equipment, net $ 232,043 § 240,205
Lease liabilities:

Current maturities of long-term obligations S 21,054 $ 18,945

Long-term obligations, less current maturities 220,188 232,802
Total finance lease liabilities $ 241,242 § 251,747
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13. Leases (continued)

The amounts relating to the Health System’s lease expense for the years ended June 30 are as
follows:

Lease Type Classification 2023 2022
Operating lease costs Supplies and other $ 70,119 $ 75,827
Short-term lease costs Supplies and other 448 521
Financing lease interest Interest 7,859 8,205
Financing lease Depreciation and

amortization amortization 19,507 21,188
Variable lease costs Supplies and other 6,267 5,718
Total lease costs $ 104200 $ 111,459

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities for the years ended June 30
is as follows:

2023 2022
Operating cash flows for operating leases $ 133975 § 144,502
Operating cash flows for finance leases 7,859 8,205
Financing cash flows for finance leases 19,830 19,712
Total $ 161,664 § 172,419

Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new leases obligations for the years ended June 30
are as follows:

2023 2022
Operating leases $ 70,053 $ 34,001
Finance leases 8,409 1,467
Total $ 78,462 $ 35,468
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13. Leases (continued)

The aggregate future lease payments for operating and finance leases as of June 30, 2023 were as
follows:

Operating Finance
2024 $ 57,182 § 28,509
2025 42,193 25,030
2026 27,352 16,162
2027 22,345 15,297
2028 18,073 14,039
Thereafter 88,879 213,517
Total lease payments 256,024 312,554
Less interest (29,445) (71,312)
Lease liabilities $ 226579 $§ 241,242

Average lease terms and discount rates at June 30 were as follows:

2023 2022
Weighted average remaining lease term (years):
Operating leases 7.57 6.62
Finance leases 15.65 16.35
Weighted average discount rate:
Operating leases 2.99% 2.44%
Finance leases 5.85 6.41

14. Functional Classification of Expenses

The Health System provides general health care services to residents within communities served,
including acute inpatient, subacute inpatient, outpatient, ambulatory, long term, and home care.
Administrative services include administration, finance and accounting, integrated marketing,
human resources, and other functions. Expenses are allocated to health care services or
administrative services based on the functional department for which they are incurred.
Department expenses may include various allocations of costs based on direct assignment,
expenses, or other methods.
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14. Functional Classification of Expenses (continued)

Expenses by functional classification for the years ended June 30 consist of the following:

2023
Health Care General and
Services  Administration Total

Salaries and benefits $ 4,403,027 $ 156,340 4,559,367
Supplies and other 2,819,719 116,286 2,936,005
Medical claims expense 102,682 - 102,682
Interest 7,693 67,537 75,230
Depreciation and amortization 309,533 4,799 314,332
Impairment and severance - 18,979 18,979

$ 7,642,654 S 363,941 8,006,595

2022
Health Care General and
Services  Administration Total

Salaries and benefits $ 4,190,737 $ 138,317 4,329,054
Supplies and other 2,566,363 107,878 2,674,241
Medical claims expense 93,313 - 93,313
Interest 7,874 60,015 67,889
Depreciation and amortization 305,139 5,745 310,884
Impairment and severance 57 7,717 7,774

$ 7,163,483 $ 319,672 7,483,155
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15. Commitments and Contingencies
Regulatory Compliance

The U.S. Department of Justice and other federal agencies are increasing resources dedicated to
regulatory investigations and compliance audits of health care providers. The Health System is not
exempt from these regulatory efforts and has received correspondence from federal agencies with
regard to such initiatives. In consultation with legal counsel, management estimates these matters
will be resolved without a material adverse effect on the Health System’s consolidated financial
position or results of operations.

Litigation

The Health System is involved in litigation arising in the normal course of business. After
consultation with legal counsel, it is management’s opinion that these matters will be resolved
without a material adverse effect on the Health System’s consolidated financial position or results
of operations.

16. Subsequent Events

The Health System evaluated events and transactions occurring subsequent to June 30, 2023
through September 13, 2023, the date the accompanying consolidated financial statements were
issued.

On August 1, 2023, Mercy entered into a definitive agreement with SoutheastHEALTH System,
Inc. in Cape Girardeau, Missouri to become a member of our Health System. SoutheastHEALTH
includes two hospitals: Southeast Hospital in Cape Girardeau and Southeast Health Center of
Stoddard County in Dexter. This is currently in the diligence phase and remains contingent upon
and subject to various governmental and regulatory approvals, as well as other third-party
consents.
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Certificate of Need Program

SERVICE-SPECIFIC REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Project Title:

Historical Financial Data for Latest Three Full Years plus

Joplin- Davinci

Project #: 6100-HS

Projections Through Three Full Years Beyond Project Completion

Use an individual form f{)r each qﬂected service wit}.1 a Year
Sl n the eare n tne appropriate blanks. | < 2001 2022 2023

Amount of Utilization:* | 21| | 365 | | 457 |

Revenue:

Average Charge** $35,959 $35,481 $34,424

Gross Revenue $11,542,839 $12,950,393 $15,731,768

Revenue Deductions 7,733,702 8,676,763 10.540.285

Operating Revenue 3.809,137 4,273,630 5,191,483

Other Revenue 0 0 0

TOTAL REVENUE $3,809,137 $4,273,630 $5,191,483

Expenses:

Direct Expenses

Salaries 1,282,040 1,219,477 1,564,262

Fees 0 0

Supplies 782,278 751,687 1,114,650

Other 1,743,244 1,661,986 2,130,248
TOTAL DIRECT $3,807,562 $3,633,150 $4,809,160

Indirect Expenses

Depreciation 260,714 260,714 260,714

Interest*** 0

Rent/Lease 0 0 0

Overhead**** 1,100,849 1,100,849 1,197,277
TOTAL INDIRECT $1,361,563 $1,361,563 $1,457,991
TOTAL EXPENSES $5,169,125 $4,994,713 $6,267,151

NET INCOME (LOSS): -$1,359,988 -$721,083 -$1,075,668

*Utilization will be measured in “patient days” for licensed beds, “procedures” for equipment,

or other appropriate units of measure specific to the service affected.

****ndicate how overhead was calculated.

**Indicate how the average charge/procedure was calculated.

***Only on long term debt, not construction.

MO 580-1865 (08/06)
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Certificate of Need Program

SERVICE-SPECIFIC REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Project Title: ) oplin daVinci

Historical Financial Data for Latest Three Full Years plus

Project #: 6100-HS

Projections Through Three Full Years Beyond Project Completion

Use an individual form for each affected service with a Year
b rm T T iod,

G il i the geare n the appropriate blanke. POt 2026 2027 2028
Amount of Utilization:* [ 20| | 97| | 1,015 |
Revenue:

Average Charge** $39,843 $41,038 $42,269
Gross Revenue $36,655,302 $39,683,746 $42,903,035
Revenue Deductions 24,559,052 25,295,824 26,054,699
Operating Revenue 12,096,250 14.387.922 16,848,336
Other Revenue 0 0 0
TOTAL REVENUE $12,096,250 $14,387,922 $16,848,336
Expenses:
Direct Expenses
Salaries 2,617,868 2,670,225 2,723,630
Fees 0 0
Buppliss 1,826,766 1,900,021 1,938,022
Other 4,410,704 4,498,918 4,588,896
TOTAL DIRECT $8,855,337 $9,069,164 $9,250,548
Indirect Expenses
Depreciation 567,857 567,857 567,857
Interest*** 0 0 o 0
Rent/Lease 0 0 0
Overhead**** 2,717,717 2,913,688 3,119,483
TOTAL INDIRECT $3,285,574 $3,481,545 $3,687,340
TOTAL EXPENSES $12,140,911 $12,550,709 $12,937,888
NET INCOME (LOSS): -$44,661 $1,837,213 $3,910,449

*Utilization will be measured in “patient days” for licensed beds, “procedures” for equipment,

or other appropriate units of measure specific to the service affected.

**Indicate how the average charge/procedure was calculated.

***Only on long term debt, not construction.

****Indicate how overhead was calculated.

MO 580-1865 (08/06)
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da Vinci System Utilization Rates - Mercy

Monthly Utilization - Only Xi B <30% Il 30-49% 50-69% I 70%-  Tumover Time System Mode!  Month IDN IDNDivision  Hospital Name
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From: Herr, Michael

To: Fick, Mackinzey
Subject: RE: CON 6100 HS
Date: Monday, July 8, 2024 11:34:43 AM

Crawford county includes Pittsburg Kansas and surrounding communities, and Delaware county is
Oklahoma, Grove and surrounding areas.

From: Fick, Mackinzey <Mackinzey.Fick@health.mo.gov>
Sent: Monday, July 8, 2024 10:50 AM

To: Herr, Michael <Michael.Herr@Mercy.Net>

Subject: CON 6100 HS

Importance: High

External Email: Please be careful when opening attachments or clicking on links. - Mercy
Technology Services

Michael,

Can you confirm the MO service area for this unit? As of now, the MO counties | have listed are
Barton, Jasper, McDonald and Newton. Crawford and Delaware county are not bolded so | am
unable to verify if these are located within KS or MO.

Please advise by July 8t".

Macki/ﬂ/é@/ Fl:Ck/ (Name change from Lux to Fick)

Assistant Program Coordinator, Certificate of Need
Department of Health and Senior Services

920 Wildwood Drive, P.O. Box 570

Jefferson City, MO 65102

OFFICE: 573-751-6403

FAX: 573-751-7894

EMAIL: mackinzey.fick@health.mo.gov

http://health.mo.gov/information/boards/certificateofneed/index.php

This electronic mail and any attached documents are intended solely for the named
addressee(s) and contain confidential information. If you are not an addressee, or responsible
for delivering this email to an addressee, you have received this email in error and are notified
that reading, copying, or disclosing this email is prohibited. If you received this email in error,
immediately reply to the sender and delete the message completely from your computer
system.


mailto:Michael.Herr@Mercy.Net
mailto:Mackinzey.Fick@health.mo.gov
mailto:mackinzey.fick@health.mo.gov
http://health.mo.gov/information/boards/certificateofneed/index.php

	(bjz) MO 580-2503 New or Additional Equipment Application
	CON APP MHJoplin-working
	SCan Quote New
	CON APP MHJoplin-working
	CON APP MHJoplin-working
	M Herr Rep Registration
	CON APP MHJoplin-working
	CON APP MHJoplin-working
	MHJoplin CON App_Project 6100 HS_working
	Auditor Report
	MHJoplin CON App_Project 6100 HS_working
	Freeman Notif Ltr
	SKM_C45824052310590
	MHJoplin CON App_Project 6100 HS_working
	MHJoplin CON App_Project 6100 HS_ pg 9
	MHJoplin CON App_Project 6100 HS_working
	CON INDEX
	Certificate of Need Program
	Applicant’s Completeness Checklist and Table of Contents

	SCAN CON




	form1865-historical-v2

	C N scan


	SCANSCAN





